








PROCLAMATION 
 

 

WHEREAS, more than one million people in the United States get cancer each year making 
cancer the second leading cause of death in the United States;  
 
WHEREAS, the American Cancer Society is the nationwide community-based voluntary health 
organization dedicated to eliminating cancer as a major health problem by preventing cancer, 
saving lives and diminishing suffering from cancer through research, education, advocacy and 
service; 

WHEREAS, the Relay for Life event is the American Cancer Society’s signature event and 
means by which the organization accomplishes its mission;  

WHEREAS, each year, more than 4 million people in over 20 countries raise much-needed 
funds and awareness to save lives from cancer through the Relay for Life events; and 

WHEREAS, the Relay for Life events also recognize and celebrate caregivers, who give time, 
love, and support to their friends, family, neighbors, and coworkers facing cancer; and 

WHEREAS, the Relay for Life event financially benefits the American Cancer Society's research 
and local cancer-education programs, raises funds for members of our community to participate 
in the national march for cancer awareness in Washington, D.C., and provides opportunities to 
network with businesses, associates, family, and friends that share the same goal of making a 
difference in the battle against cancer; and 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council of the City of Leander hereby recognize the 
outstanding efforts of the local American Cancer Society and the Relay for Life program, and 
the benefits and assistance the organization provides to local cancer survivors, as well as the 
continuing effort to educate our community with cancer-related information and awareness.  

BE IT RESOLVED this the 1st day of May, 2014 that the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Leander, Texas hereby proclaim May 3 & 4 as: 

“RELAY FOR LIFE” DAY IN LEANDER 
 

And the month of May 2014 as 
 

“CANCER AWARENESS MONTH”  
                       

                  

                                             Attest:   

__________________________________                              _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                                        Debbie Haile, City Secretary                                                                                     
:             



 
 

1                                                                                 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 
201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ April 17, 2014 at 7:00 PM     

        
        Audio recording of this meeting did not begin until item # 4 
        
  1.  Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance  
       Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
       Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh delivered the invocation 
 
  2.  Roll Call 

          All present except Council Member Lynch 
 
     3.  Staff Comments:  
          Wayne Watts, City Engineer discussed the closing of E. Crystal Falls and Hwy 183  
          Pat Womack, Director of Public Works discussed Spring Clean up Day on April 26th 
 
     4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  

       Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins. 
      William D. Boggs – announced to Council that he is running for re-election for the  
      PEC Board   
 
  5.  Proclamation designating April 13th thru April 19th as National Public Safety Telecommunications  
       Week   Sponsored by Lieutenant Jackson Mitchell  
       Council Member Navarrette read the Proclamation 

          Asst. Chief of Police Hayes introduced Lt. Jackson Mitchell, Supervisor Mark Yamma and    
          Supervisor Carlos Montoya        

   
  6.  Approval of the minutes: April 3, 2014    
 
  7.  Acceptance of a Trail Grant from Texas Parks & Wildlife 

  8. Consider a License Agreement with Travisso, Ltd. for the installation and maintenance of irrigation 
within the City right-of-way.  

 
  9.  Second Reading of an ordinance on Zoning Case #13-Z-028: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
       Composite Zoning Ordinance for several tracts of land located at 2680 CR 268, 17851 Ronald W.  
       Reagan, generally located north of Hero Way, West of Ronald Reagan Blvd. & south of San Gabriel,  
       Leander Williamson County, Texas 
 
 
 

                                                   Mayor – Christopher Fielder  
                     Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette       Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese  
                     Place 2 – Kirsten Lynch              Place 5 – Jason Dishongh (Mayor Pro Tem) 
          Place 3 – Simon Garcia               Place 6 – David Siebold  
                                                   City Manager – Kent Cagle 

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 



 
 

2                                                                                 

 
 

 
10.  Second Reading of an ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-005: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  

          Composite Zoning Ordinance for a tract of land located at 1001 Horizon Park Blvd, Leander,  
          Williamson County, Texas 
 
   11.  Second Reading of an ordinance extending the term of a Franchise granted to Al Clawson Disposal,  
          Inc. to provide recycling and solid waste collection and disposal services within the City of Leander;  
          under Ordinance No. 11-007-00 
 
   12.  Authorize amendment to the Contract for Solid Waste Collection, Disposal and Recycling Services with 
          Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. 
          Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia 
          Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  

 

13.  Public Hearing on Subdivision Case #13-CP-010: Consider the Marbella Concept Plan, for 85.28 
acres, more or less generally located ¾ of a mile east of the intersection of Hwy 183A and RM 2243, 
adjacent to the south side of RM 2243, Williamson County, Texas 

         Applicant: Brian Birdwell on behalf of NK Land Investment, LLC, Weldon Stephen Walker and Tammy 
Walker  

        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
        Action on Subdivision Case #13-CP-010: Marbella Concept Plan, Williamson County, Texas 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

 14.  Public Hearing on Subdivision Case #14-CP-001: Consider Stewart Crossing Concept Plan, for 66.2 
acres, more or less, generally located 1,000 feet to the east of the northeast corner of the intersection 
of 183A Toll Road and E. Woodview Drive, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 

         Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
          Jim Mosner, 3301 Spumanti Cove – inquired about the Church’s access to 2243 
          Bob Brydon, 3508 Laurel Bay Loop, Pastor of Generations Church talked about access to 2243  
 
         Action on Subdivision Case #14-CP-001: Stewart Crossing Concept Plan, Leander, Williamson 

County, Texas 
           
          Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
          Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
15.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #14-Z-006: Consider a zoning change 13.385 acres, more or less, for 

several tracts of land located to the west of the western terminus of Osage Drive in the Bluffs at 
Crystal Falls Subdivision from SFU-2-B, Single Family Urban, SFS-2-B, Single Family Suburban, and 
SFC-2-B, Single Family Compact to SFU-2-B, Single Family Urban, SFS-2-B, Single Family Suburban 
and SFC-2-B, Single Family Compact, Leander, Travis County, Texas 

       Applicant: Sam Kiger on behalf of Taylor Morrison at Crystal Falls, LLC 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
        Shanan Shepherd – inquired about the roadway 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 



 
 

3                                                                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #14-Z-006: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for several tract of land located to the west of the western terminus of Osage Drive in the Bluffs at 

Crystal Falls Subdivision, Leander, Williamson County. Texas 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Navarrette 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

  
16.  Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a proposal to establish a Public Improvement  
       District (PID) and a TIRZ Development and reimbursement agreement for the Oak Creek 
       Project 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Rick Rosenberg gave a presentation 
 
        Mayor Fielder asked staff to bring this item back on the next agenda for consideration 
 
17.  Consider approval of the second amendment to the Facilities Agreements for Travis County 
       Municipal Utility Districts 19, 20 and 21 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 

          Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
          Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

  
18.  Consider action to approve the assignment of the Development and Annexation Agreement with  
       RMD Holdings, LP to Ewing Development Company, LLC.  
      Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained  
 

          Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
          Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 

 
19.  Convene into Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, to consider  
       the acquisition and value of real property 
 
       Council convened into executive session at 8:10 pm 
       Council reconvened into open session at 8:38 pm 
 
20.  Reconvene into open session to take action as deemed appropriate in the City Council’s discretion  
       regarding the acquisition and value of real property 
 
       No action taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 



 
 

4                                                                                 

 
 
21.  Consider a Resolution authorizing the Brushy Creek Regional Utility Authority to enter into a Purchase  
       Contract with the Lower Colorado River Authority for acquisition of a 1.685 acre pumping station, a  
       0.802 acre temporary construction easement and two subsurface easements totaling 3.554 acres out  
       of a portion of Sandy Creek Park 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve.  Second by Council Member Navarrette. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
22.  Council Members Closing Statements 
       Council Members gave their closing statements 
 
23.  Adjournment 
       With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:40 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       Attest: 
 
       
      _______________________________              _________________________________ 
      Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                  Debbie Haile TRMC, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 01, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-006:  Second reading and consider action on the 

rezoning of several tracts of land located to the west of the western 
terminus of Osage Drive in the Bluffs at Crystal Falls Subdivision; 
Legally described as 13.385 acres more or less out of the B.F. 
Davis Survey 73, the J.H. Harris Survey 96, the I.A. Hampton 
Survey 613, and the Lucinda Carter Survey; TCAD Parcel 831299. 
Currently, the property is zoned SFU-2-B (Single- Family Urban), 
SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), and SFC-2-B (Single-Family 
Compact). The property is proposed to be zoned SFU-2-B (Single- 
Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), and SFC-2-B 
(Single-Family Compact), Leander, Travis County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Sam Kiger on behalf of Taylor Morrison at Crystal 

Falls, LLC. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the request at the April 10, 
2014 meeting.  The City Council unanimously approved the 
request at the April 17, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.   Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6. Ordinance 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 04/23/2014 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-006 

Bluffs Section 3 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Taylor Morrison at Crystal Falls, LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), 

SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) 
    
Proposed Zoning: SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), 

SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) 
 
Size and Location: The property is located approximately 1,300 feet from the westward 

extension of Osage Dr. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFS-2-B 
SFC-2-A 

Undeveloped Residential 
Undeveloped Residential 

EAST 

 
SFS-2-B 
SFC-2-B 

 

Undeveloped Residential 
Undeveloped Residential 

SOUTH SFU -2-B Undeveloped Residential 

WEST PUD Undeveloped Residential 

 
 
 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

      

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
SFS – SINGLE FAMILY SUBURBAN:   
Features:  9,000 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,500 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  Development of single-family detached dwellings on intermediate suburban standard 

sized lots and for other compatible and complimentary uses. The purpose of this component is 
to provide regulations to maintain and protect the City's single-family residences and 
neighborhoods in areas with intermediate lot sizes. 

 
SFU – SINGLE FAMILY URBAN:   
Features:  7,200 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  Development of single-family detached dwellings on moderate urban standard sized lots 

and for other compatible and complimentary uses. The purpose of this component is to provide 
regulations to maintain and protect the City's single-family residences and neighborhoods in 
areas with moderate lot sizes.  Such components are generally intended to offer variety in 
housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods. 

 
SFC – SINGLE FAMILY COMPACT:   
Features:  5,500 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,100 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  Development of single-family detached dwellings on small lots and for other compatible 

and complimentary uses. The purpose of this component is to provide regulations to maintain 
and protect the City's single-family residences and neighborhoods in areas with small lot sizes.  
Such components are generally intended to offer variety in housing opportunities and in the 
fabric of the neighborhoods, and to be developed on a moderate scale with a maximum district 
size of seventy-five (75) acres. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The property is presently zoned SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family 
Suburban), and SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) districts. The applicant is requesting to adjust 
the zoning boundaries for three tracts of land to coordinate the appropriate lot sizes with their 
subsequent preliminary plat.  
 
The three tracts and corresponding proposed zone change classifications are listed below: 
 An approximate 6.7 acre tract of land from SFU-2-B to SFS-2-B 
 An approximate  5.0 acre tract of land from SFS-2-B to SFU-2-B 
 An approximate 1.6 acre tract of land from SFU-2-B to SFC-2-B 

 
The intent of rezoning the approximate 6.7 acre tract would be to allow for increases in 
minimum lot width, depths, and lot areas, while the intent of rezoning the 5.0 and 1.6 acre tracts 
would reduce the minimum lot widths, depths, and areas. 
 
The following table is a summary of lot widths, depths, and areas for the above listed zoning 
classes. 
 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

Zoning Classification Permitted Lot Widths (ft) Permitted Lot Depths (ft) Permitted Lot Areas (sq. ft.) 
SFS-2-B 70 115 9,000 
SFU-2-B 60 110 7,200 
SFC-2-B 50 105 5,500 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant’s request allows for an equal exchange of acreage for lot size increases and 
reductions.   The proposed rezoning meets the intent of the composite zoning ordinance and 
comprehensive plan.  Staff finds no objection to the applicant’s request, and recommends 
approval for the requested zone change. 
 



FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

2A

3B

2A

2A

2A

2B

2A

2B

2B
2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B 2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B 2B2B

2B GOOD NIGHT TRL

MIRADORLA
JIT

AS

OSAGE DR

CO
RA

L V
AL

LE
Y D

R
ZO

A D
R

GR
AN

ITE
 HI

LL
 DR

HILLTOP DIVIDE LN

CRYSTAL FA
LLS PKWY

HIGH LONESOME

PA
SA TIE

MPO

LOOKOUT RANGE DR

HILLTOP CLIMB DR

WAGON WAY

PRESERVE TRL

SHUMARD BLUFF DR

CA
P R

OCK
 LN

YAUPON RANGE DR

LEGEND HILL DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-006
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Bluffs at Crystal Falls Sec. 3

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Municipal Dr



FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

GR
AN

ITE
 HI

LL 
DR

GOOD NIGHT TRL

SHUMARD BLUFF DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-006 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Bluffs at Crystal Falls Section 3

S WEST DR



FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

2A

3B

2A

2A

2A

2B

2A

2B

2B
2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B 2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B 2B2B

2B GOOD NIGHT TRL

MIRADORLA
JIT

AS

OSAGE DR

CO
RA

L V
AL

LE
Y D

R
ZO

A D
R

GR
AN

ITE
 HI

LL
 DR

HILLTOP DIVIDE LN

CRYSTAL FA
LLS PKWY

HIGH LONESOME

PA
SA TIE

MPO

LOOKOUT RANGE DR

HILLTOP CLIMB DR

WAGON WAY

PRESERVE TRL

SHUMARD BLUFF DR

CA
P R

OCK
 LN

YAUPON RANGE DR

LEGEND HILL DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-006
Attachment #4
Proposed Zoning Map
Bluffs at Crystal Falls Sec. 3

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Municipal Dr

Proposed SFS-2-B

Proposed SFU-2-B

Proposed SFC-2-B



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING SEVERAL PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM SFU-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN), SFS-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY 
SUBURBAN), AND SFC-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY COMPACT) TO SFU-2-B 
(SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN), SFS-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN), 
AND SFC-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY COMPACT); MAKING FINDINGS OF 
FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 13.385 acres, more or 
less, located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit 
“A” & “B”, legally described as 13.385 acres more or less out of the B.F. Davis Survey 73, the 
J.H. Harris Survey 96, the I.A. Hampton Survey 613, and the Lucinda Carter Survey; more 
particularly described in Document Number 2010094028 of the Official Public Records of Travis 
County, Texas, and identified by tax identification number 831299.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family 
Suburban), and SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact) to SFU-2-b (Single-Family Urban), SFS-2-B 
(Single-Family Suburban), and SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact); 
 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

3B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B 2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B 2B2B

2B GOOD NIGHT TRL

MIRADORLA
JIT

AS

OSAGE DR

CO
RA

L V
AL

LE
Y D

R
ZO

A D
R

GR
AN

ITE
 HI

LL
 DR

HILLTOP DIVIDE LN

CRYSTAL FA
LLS PKWY

HIGH LONESOME

PA
SA TIE

MPO

LOOKOUT RANGE DR

HILLTOP CLIMB DR

WAGON WAY

PRESERVE TRL

SHUMARD BLUFF DR

CA
P R

OCK
 LN

YAUPON RANGE DR

LEGEND HILL DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

EXHIBIT B
Zoning Case
14-Z-006
Bluffs at Crystal Falls Sec. 3

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Municipal Dr

Proposed SFS-2-B

Proposed SFU-2-B

Proposed SFC-2-B



AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

May 1, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Reagan’s Overlook Phase One 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Reagan’s Overlook 
Phase One have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on May 1, 2014, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through May 1, 2016.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Reagan’s Overlook Phase One. 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





























AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

May 1, 2014 

 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of a License Agreement with Capital 
Metropolitan Transportation Authority for Metro Drive 
 
Background:  The purpose of this license agreement is for the installation and 
maintenance of the Metro Drive railroad crossing adjacent to U.S. Hwy. 183.  Metro 
Drive was constructed serve the Cap Metro’s Leander Rail/Bus Station, and it was not a 
Leander CIP project such as Sonny Drive, Crystal Falls Parkway, or Hero Way and San 
Gabriel Parkway (Williamson County Projects dedicated to the City after completion).  
This was/is a Cap Metro project, and the crossing currently serves only the Cap Metro 
facility, which is presumably why there never was a License Agreement for the crossing. 
A proposed traffic signalization and preemption coordination project between Cap Metro 
and TXDOT requires this license agreement to be in place.   
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $0.00 per year until future development of east of the railroad 
right-of-way. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of this License Agreement. 
 
Attachments:  Draft License Agreement and Exhibit A 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 



 
Page 1 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

LICENSE TO USE 
RIGHT OF WAY 

(Rail) 
 

This License Agreement (“Agreement”), is made by and between Capital Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (“Licensor”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas organized and existing 
under Chapter 451, Texas Transportation Code, whose address is 2910 E. Fifth St., Austin, TX 78702 and 
the City of Leander (“Licensee”), whose address is 200 W Willis St., Leander, TX 78641 (collectively the 
“Parties”).   
 

I. General Terms and Conditions 

In consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, obligations, and benefits contained herein and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
Parties agree to the terms and conditions stated herein as evidenced by the signatures of their respective 
duly authorized representatives below. 

A. Premises  

Licensor controls 162 miles of rail line between Giddings and Llano, Texas (“Giddings-Llano Line”).  

B. License Grant & Use 

1. Licensor, subject to the conditions, limitations, and reservations hereinafter set forth, hereby 
grants to Licensee the right to use that portion of the Giddings-Llano Line in Williamson County, 
Texas, located at Mile Post (“MP”) 87.13 (“Licensed Property”). 

2. Licensee has installed on the Licensed Property a road known as Metro Drive in Leander, Texas 
(“Facility”) in accordance with the plans attached as Exhibit “A”. 

3. Licensee shall use the Licensed Property solely for operating, and maintaining the Facility in 
strict compliance with all federal, state, municipality and other governmental regulations and no 
other purpose. 

4. Licensee shall not locate any ground facilities or subterranean facilities within the Licensed 
Property.  No equipment, vehicles, material or supplies will be stored on the Licensed Property or 
on any portion of the Giddings-Llano Line overnight or on weekends. 

5. Licensee shall maintain the Licensed Property and the Facility in a good and safe condition at 
all times. All licenses, permits or other fees payable to a governmental authority shall be the 
sole responsibility of Licensee. 

6. Licensee shall furnish, install, and maintain, at its sole expense, in a manner satisfactory to 
Licensor, any signs as are recommended and approved by Licensor to adequately mark the 
location of Licensee's use of the property of Licensor. 

7. In the event Licensee fails to maintain the Facility, including all required signage, in a good and 
safe condition, Licensor reserves the right to perform the required work at Licensee’s expense. 

8. Licensee shall obtain and maintain all of the certificates, permits and other approvals,  
including, without limitation, those relating to health, safety, noise, environmental protection, 
waste disposal, and water and air quality (collectively the “Governmental Approvals”) which 
may be required by any federal, state or local authorities for the location, installation, 
maintenance or operation of the Facility on the Licensed Property.  Licensee shall furnish 
satisfactory evidence of compliance upon request by Licensor. 
 

9. If an emergency situation arises during construction or any maintenance of the Facility, Licensee 
shall immediately notify Licensor's Railroad Operations Department by telephone at (512) 997-



 
Page 2 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

0010, and then proceed to take only those actions necessary to return the property of Licensor to a 
safe condition, unless otherwise directed by Licensor. 
 

C. This Agreement is subject and subordinate to: 

1. Licensor’s mass transit rights, obligations, duties, use, plans and operations; 

2. The authority of the Federal Transit Administration and the requirements of any federal 
grants obtained by Licensor in connection with its acquisition of the Giddings-Llano Line; 

3. Any rail freight services contract, rail freight operations, and passenger rail operations; and 

4. All easements, restrictions, covenants, licenses, encumbrances, leases, conditions, liens and 
claims of title affecting the Giddings-Llano Line, including the prior rights of the City of 
Austin set forth in Quitclaim Deed dated May 20, 1998 recorded in Volume 13187, Page 
3118 of the Real Property Records of Travis County, Texas. 

Licensor, and its agents, successors, and assigns, consistent with the rights herein granted, reserve the 
right to use the Giddings-Llano Line for any and all purposes not inconsistent with the rights granted 
to Licensee in this Agreement. 

D. Term and License Fees  

1. This Agreement will automatically terminate upon the extension of Metro Drive. No Licensee fee 
shall be required during the term hereof.    

2. This Agreement may be terminated at any time upon the occurrence of any of the following 
events: 
a. Licensee fails to perform or comply with any of the terms and provisions of this Agreement, 

after written notice to Licensee as provided in Paragraph I. H. Default; 
b. Licensee fails to maintain the liability insurance coverage required by this Agreement; 
c. Upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice from Licensee to Licensor; or 
d. Upon one hundred eighty (180) days’ prior written notice from Licensor to Licensee. 

 
E. Licensee Responsibilities 

1. Licensee shall pay, in full, all persons who perform labor on the Licensed Property.  Licensee will 
not allow any mechanic or material liens to be filed or enforced against the Giddings-Llano Line 
or the property of Licensor for work done or materials furnished at Licensee’s instance or request. 
If any such liens are filed thereon, Licensee agrees to immediately remove the same at Licensee’s 
own cost and expense, without regard to the legal enforceability of such liens. Should Licensee 
fail, neglect or refuse to do so, Licensor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement or at its 
option pay any amount required to release any such lien or liens, or to defend any action brought 
thereon, and to pay any judgment entered therein, and Licensee shall be liable to Licensor for all 
costs, damages and reasonable attorney’s fees, and any amounts expended in defending any 
proceedings, or in the payment of any of such liens, or any judgment obtained against Licensor 
upon demand with interest at the maximum rate allowed by law from demand until payment. 
 

2. Should any discharge, leakage, spillage, emission or environmental contamination of any type 
occur upon or arise from the Licensed Property as a result of Licensee’s use, presence, operations 
or exercise of the rights granted under this Agreement, Licensee shall, at its expense, be obligated 
to clean or remediate all property affected thereby, whether owned or controlled by Licensor or 
any third persons to the satisfaction of Licensor and any  governmental body having jurisdiction 
in the matter. Licensor may, at its option, clean or remediate such leakage, spillage, emission or 
environmental contamination, and Licensee shall pay Licensor the cost of such cleanup and 
remediation upon demand with interest at the maximum rate allowed by law from demand until 



 
Page 3 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

payment.  For purposes of this Agreement, “environmental contamination” shall mean 
contamination of air quality, water quality, hazardous materials, wastewater, waste disposal, air 
emissions, or other environmental matters in violation of applicable federal, state and local laws. 
The phrase “hazardous materials” means any pollutant, toxic substance, hazardous waste, 
hazardous material, hazardous substance, solvent or oil as defined by any federal state or local 
environmental law, regulation or ordinance. The provisions of this subparagraph shall survive 
termination of this Agreement. 

3. Licensee shall be solely responsible for obtaining any and all Governmental Approvals and any 
other licenses, easements, permits, consents, or permissions necessary for Licensee's use of the 
Licensed Property including, without limitation, from any owner of an interest in the Licensed 
Property. 

F. Insurance 
1. Licensee shall obtain and maintain insurance of the types and in the amounts as set forth on 

Exhibit “B” and “B-1”attached to this Agreement. If Licensee fails to do so, Licensor shall 
have the immediate right (but not the obligation) to effect such insurance without notice to 
Licensee, in which event the amount so paid by Licensor shall be paid by Licensee to 
Licensor upon demand with interest at the maximum rate allowed by law from demand until 
payment. 

2. Waiver of Subrogation. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT TO 
THE CONTRARY, LICENSOR AND LICENSEE HEREBY WAIVE AND RELEASE EACH 
OTHER OF AND FROM ANY AND ALL RIGHT OF RECOVERY, CLAIM, ACTION OR 
CAUSE OF ACTION, AGAINST EACH OTHER, THEIR AGENTS, OFFICERS AND 
EMPLOYEES, FOR ANY LOSS OR DAMAGE THAT MAY OCCUR TO THE LICENSED 
PROPERTY OR PERSONAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE LICENSED PROPERTY, BY 
REASON OF FIRE OR THE ELEMENTS, REGARDLESS OF CAUSE OR ORIGIN, 
INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OF LICENSOR OR LICENSEE AND THEIR AGENTS, 
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES, TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSS OR DAMAGE WOULD 
HAVE BEEN COVERED BY THEN STANDARD FIRE AND EXTENDED COVERAGE 
POLICIES, WHETHER OR NOT ACTUALLY OBTAINED AND WHETHER OR NOT 
LICENSOR OR LICENSEE SELF INSURES ANY RISK. LICENSOR AND LICENSEE 
AGREE IMMEDIATELY TO GIVE THEIR RESPECTIVE INSURANCE COMPANIES 
WHICH HAVE ISSUED POLICIES OF INSURANCE COVERING ALL RISK OF DIRECT 
PHYSICAL LOSS, WRITTEN NOTICE OF THE TERMS OF THE MUTUAL WAIVERS 
CONTAINED IN THIS PARGRAPH, AND TO HAVE THE INSURANCE POLICIES 
PROPERLY ENDORSED, IF NECESSARY, TO PREVENT THE INVALIDATION OF THE 
INSURANCE COVERAGES BY REASON OF THE MUTUAL WAIVERS. 

G. Default  
If Licensee defaults in the performance of any covenant or agreement under this Agreement and 
the default continues for thirty (30) days after Licensor’s written notice specifying the default 
(expressly excluding the obligation to maintain insurance in which case written notice is not 
required),   Licensor shall have any right of remedy provided herein or available at law or in 
equity, including, without limiting the foregoing, the right to immediately terminate this 
Agreement. 
 

H. INDEMNIFICATION 
1. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, LICENSEE SHALL, AT LICENSEE’S SOLE 

COST AND EXPENSE DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS LICENSOR 
FROM AND AGAINST ALL LIABILITIES, DEMANDS, CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, 
CAUSES OF ACTION OR JUDGMENTS, AND ALL REASONABLE EXPENSES 
INCURRED IN INVESTIGATING OR RESISTING THE SAME (COLLECTIVELY, 



 
Page 4 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

“CLAIMS”), FOR INJURY TO PERSON, LOSS OF LIFE OR DAMAGE TO PERSONAL 
OR REAL PROPERTY, INCLUDING ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE) ARISING OUT 
OF LICENSEE’S USE OR OCCUPANCY OF THE LICENSED PROPERTY, WHETHER 
FORESEEABLE OR UNFORESEEABLE, DIRECT OR INDIRECT, OR 
CONTRIBUTED TO BY THE ACTIVE OR PASSIVE NEGLIGENCE OF LICENSOR, 
ITS CONTRACTORS, AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES (EXCEPT WHEN CAUSED BY THE 
SOLE GROSS NEGLIGENCE OF LICENSOR, ITS CONTRACTORS, AGENTS OR 
EMPLOYEES). 

2. Licensee’s obligations to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Licensor under this 
paragraph shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

I. Right to Eject  

Licensor may eject or cause to be ejected from the Licensed Property Licensee or any person acting 
under Licensee’s authority or direction that is engaging in conduct that is unlawful or unsafe. 
Licensor shall not be liable to Licensee for any damages that may be sustained by Licensee or the 
ejected person through Licensor’s exercise of such right. 
 

J. Force Majeure 

Licensor shall not be liable to Licensee for events beyond the control of Licensor that prevents or 
restricts access to the Licensed Property (“Event of Force Majeure”). Events of Force Majeure shall 
include, without limitation: Acts of God; strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disputes; epidemics, 
civil disturbances, acts of domestic or foreign terrorism, riots or insurrections; landslides, lightening, 
earthquakes, fire, storms, floods or washouts; explosions; interruptions by government or court 
orders; declarations of emergencies by applicable federal, state or local authorities; and,  present or 
future orders of any regulatory body having proper jurisdiction and authority. If the use of the 
Licensed Property is prevented in whole or in material part by an Event of Force Majeure that extends 
more than thirty (30) days, Licensor may terminate this Agreement upon written notice. Licensee 
agrees that its exclusive remedy in the event of termination under this paragraph shall be a refund of 
the unearned fees and charges paid by Licensee prior to the termination. Licensee hereby releases and 
waives all claims against Licensor for any cost, loss, expense, liability, or damages sustained by 
reason of such termination. 
 

II. Miscellaneous 

A. No Warranty 
LICENSOR MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE NATURE OR 
EXTENT OF ITS RIGHT, TITLE, OR INTEREST IN OR TO THE LICENSED PROPERTY, 
AND ANY IMPLIED REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE NATURE OR 
EXTENT OF LICENSOR'S RIGHT, TITLE, AND INTEREST IN OR TO THE LICENSED 
PROPERTY IS HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISAVOWED BY LICENSOR.  FURTHERMORE, 
LICENSEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT IT ACCEPTS THE CONDITION OF 
THE LICENSED PROPERTY “AS-IS” WITH ANY AND ALL LATENT AND PATENT 
DEFECTS, AND LICENSEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT LICENSOR HAS NOT MADE AND 
DOES NOT MAKE ANY WARRANTIES OF THE CONDITION OF THE LICENSED 
PROPERTY OR THAT THE LICENSED PROPERTY IS FIT FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE. WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING, LICENSEE ACKNOWLEDGES 
AND AGREES THAT IT WILL INSTALL ALL IMPROVEMENTS LICENSEE REQUIRES 
ON THE LICENSED PROPERTY, IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THEIR COMPLIANCE WITH 
ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, AND IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL LICENSES, EASEMENTS, 
PERMITS, CONSENTS, OR PERMISSIONS REQUIRED FOR LICENSEE’S USE OF THE 
LICENSED PROPERTY AND LICENSOR WILL HAVE NO LIABILITY OR 
RESPONSIBILITY THEREFORE. 



 
Page 5 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

B. Obligation to Report 
If Licensee is aware any dangerous or defective condition exists on the Licensed Property that, under 
the normal course of business, are the responsibility of the Licensor, and Licensee fails to report the 
problem to Licensor, Licensee continues to be responsible for its obligations established in this 
Agreement.  Under these circumstances, Licensor will not be liable for any detrimental consequences. 

C. No Waiver 
The failure of Licensor to insist in any one or more cases upon the performance of any of the 
provisions, covenants, agreements or conditions of this Agreement or to exercise any option herein 
contained shall not be construed as a waiver or a relinquishment for the future of any such 
provision, covenant, agreement, condition or option. Receipt by Licensor of License Fees or of 
any other payment or the acceptance by Licensor of performance of anything required by this 
Agreement to be performed with knowledge of the breach of a covenant shall not be deemed a 
waiver of such breach. The failure to enforce or any delay in the enforcement of any privileges, 
rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities detailed in the Agreement or otherwise available to Licensor 
by law will not constitute a waiver of such privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities or be 
considered as a basis for estoppel.  No waiver of any provision, covenant, agreement or condition 
of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been made unless expressed in writing and signed by 
the party against whom such waiver is charged. The express waiver by either Licensor or Licensee 
of any breach shall not operate to extinguish the covenant or condition, the breach of which has 
been waived. 

D. Governing Law and Venue 
This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas, and venue shall be in Travis Williamson County, Texas. 

E. Attorneys’ Fees 
In the event  Licensor finds it necessary to employ legal counsel to enforce its rights under this 
Agreement, or to bring an action at law, or other proceeding against Licensee to enforce any of the 
terms, covenants or conditions herein, Licensee shall pay to Licensor its  reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and expenses, regardless of whether suit is filed.  

F. Compliance with Laws  
Licensee agrees not to use the Licensed Property for any unlawful purpose. Licensor reserves the 
right, in its sole discretion, to unilaterally amend this Agreement at any time to incorporate any 
modifications necessary for Licensor’s compliance, with all applicable state and federal laws, 
regulations, requirements and guidelines. 

G. No Joint Venture 
This Agreement does not intend to, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall, create any 
partnership, joint venture or other joint or equity type agreement between Licensor and Licensee.  

H. No Third Party Beneficiaries  
No term or provision of this Agreement is intended to be, or shall be, for the benefit of any person, 
firm, organization, or corporation not a party to this Agreement and no such other person, firm 
organization or corporation shall have any right or cause of action hereunder. 

I. Severability  
If any provisions of this Agreement are, for any reason, held by a court to be unenforceable, then the 
invalidity of such provision will not invalidate any other provisions, which other provisions will 
remain in full force and effect unless removal of such invalid provision destroys the legitimate 
purpose of the Agreement, in which event the Agreement will be terminated. 

J. Recording 
Licensee shall not record this Agreement.  

K. Personal License  



 
Page 6 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

The rights and privileges herein given are personal to the Licensee. Licensee has no exclusive rights 
or benefits other than those set forth herein. This Agreement shall not be assignable by Licensee, in 
whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Licensor.  

L. Right of Entry 
At any time during the term hereof, Licensor or its representatives shall have the right, without 
disturbance of Licensee’s use or possession, to enter the Licensed Property.  

M. Dates of Performance 
In the event that the date for performance by either Party of any obligation under this Agreement are 
required to be performed by such Party falls on a Saturday, Sunday or  national holiday, the time for 
performance of such obligation shall be deemed extended until the next business day following such 
date.  

N. Exhibits 
This Agreement incorporates by reference the following Exhibits: 
1. Exhibit “A” (Plans)  
2. Exhibit “B” (Insurance Requirements) 
3. Exhibit “B-1” (Minimum Insurance Coverage Limits) 

O. Merger 
This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties relating to the 
transaction contemplated hereby and supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous oral or written 
statements, agreements, correspondence, quotations and negotiations. In executing this Agreement, 
the Parties do not rely upon any statement, promise, or representation not expressed herein. This 
Agreement may not be modified, changed or altered in any respect except by the mutual written 
agreement of the Parties. 

P. Notice 
All notices, statements, demands, requests, consents, approvals, authorizations, offers, agreements, 
appointments or designations required under this Agreement or by law by either party to the other 
shall be in writing and may be given or served by depositing same in the United States mail, postage 
paid, registered or certified and addressed to the party to be notified, with return receipt requested; by 
personally delivering same to such party, or an agent of such party; or by overnight courier service, 
postage paid and addressed to the party to be notified. Notice deposited in the U.S. mail in the manner 
hereinabove described shall be effective upon such deposit. Notice given in any other manner shall be 
effective only if and when received by the party to be notified.  

Q. Condemnation 
If all, or any, portion of the Licensed Property including, but not limited to, the air ways over and 
across the Licensed Property, is condemned by any authority with condemnation powers, the 
proceeds of such condemnation shall be the property of Licensor. 

R. Time is of the Essence 

Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

S. Signature 

A copy or facsimile signature shall be deemed an original signature for all purposes. For purposes of 
this paragraph, the phrase “facsimile signature” includes without limitation, an image of an original 
signature in whatever means or form. 

T. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which, together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 



 
Page 7 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

U. No Assignment 

Licensee may not assign this Agreement without Licensor’s prior written consent. 

V. Interpretation. 

Whenever used herein, the term “including” shall be deemed to be followed by the words “with 
limitation”. Words used in the singular number shall include the plural, and vice-versa, and any 
gender shall be deemed to include each other gender.  

W.  Survival 

Termination of this Agreement shall not relieve Licensee’s liability or obligation set forth in this 
Agreement that is expressly stated to survive termination of this Agreement. 

III. Signatories 

A. Effect Date of Execution 
The Agreement will be executed and effective as of the date of the last Party to sign (the “Effective 
Date”).  

B. Signatories 
This Agreement is hereby accepted and agreed to by the following individuals or officers who 
represent that they are duly authorized to bind the Parties as set forth above.   
 
 
 
 

Capital Metropolitan   
Transportation Authority 

 

City of Leander 
 

By:        By:        

 John Hodges  Printed Name:  _______________________ 
 VP, Real Estate & Asset Management  Title: _______________________________ 
 

Date:        Date:        

  
Approved as to form:  

  
Legal: ________  



 
Page 8 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

  
 

 
Exhibit “A” 

 
(Plans) 

  



 
Page 9 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

 
 

Exhibit “B” 
 
 

CAPITAL METRO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Licensee shall either: (1), at its own cost and expense, procure the insurance set forth in Exhibit B-1 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, and promptly pay when due all premiums for the insurance; or (2) 
maintain risk-pool insurance at the levels in effect as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any term contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Licensee’s risk-pool insurance 
shall satisfy the insurance requirements of this Agreement.  The insurance shall be kept in full force 
during the life of the Agreement. 
 
Licensee’s insurance shall be: primary and non-contributory with respect to any insurance which might be 
carried by Licensor and contain a contractual waiver of subrogation. 
 
Licensee shall furnish to Licensor certificate (s) of insurance evidencing the required coverage and 
endorsement(s) and, upon request, a certified duplicate original of any of those policies.  
 
Licensee shall notify Licensor in writing of any material alteration of such policies, including any change 
in the retroactive date in any “claims-made” policy or substantial reduction of aggregate limits, if such 
limits apply or cancellation thereof at least thirty (30) days prior thereto. 
 
All insurance policies shall be written by reputable insurance company or companies acceptable to 
Licensor with a current Best’s Insurance Guide Rating of A+ and Class XIII or better. All insurance 
companies shall be authorized to transact business in the State of Texas. 
 
  



 
Page 10 of 10 

Rev.  4/14 
 

EXHIBIT “B-1” 
 

CAPITAL METRO MINIMUM COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance Coverage with  limits of not less than One Million Dollars 
and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000) with combined single limit of $2,000,000 with coverage that includes: 
• Premises/operations 
• Independent contractors 
• Personal Injury 
• Contractual Liability pertaining to the liabilities assumed in the agreement 
• Underground (when ground surface is disturbed)  
 
Such insurance shall include a contractual endorsement pertaining to the liabilities assumed in the Agreement. 
 
2. Comprehensive Automobile insurance coverage with minimum limits of not less than One Million 
Dollars and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000) with combined single limit of $2,000,000 
 
3. Workers’ Compensation with Statutory  limits 
 
4.  Employer Liability Insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000 
 
Such insurance shall include a contractual endorsement which acknowledges all indemnification requirements 
under the Agreement. 
 
5. Railroad Protection – as applicable- in the minimum amount of $5,000,000 
 
 
Note: Such policies of insurance and certificates provided by Licensee shall provide (i) that Licensor is 
named as an additional insured, (ii) that the named insured’s insurance is primary and non-contributory 
with any insurance maintained by Capital Metro, (iii) a contractual waiver of subrogation where required 
by written contract or agreement, and (iv) that Capital Metro shall receive notice of any cancellation of 
the policy. 





















































AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 01, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Ordinance Case 14-OR-001:  Hold a public hearing 

and consider action on amendments to the Subdivision Ordinance, 
to add provisions for temporary stockpiling of materials, to add 
provisions for trail corridors, and to modify the exceptions 
associated with block width requirements. 

 
Background: Staff is proposing the following amendments to the Subdivision 

Ordinance: 
1. Addition of provisions that would permit the storage of 

materials during the subdivision process. 
2. Addition of trail corridors to the Transportation Improvements 

requirements. 
3. Modification of the exceptions associated with block width 

requirements. 
 
Origination: Planning Department 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the amendment with the 
following addition to Article III, Section 48 (h): 
(4) The setback requirements may be reduced by twenty-five 

(25%) percent if screening of the fill material is provided.  
Screening includes a six (6’) foot privacy fence constructed of 
cedar with steel posts sunk in concrete.  The smooth side of 
the fence shall face away from the fill material. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Summary of Proposed Amendments 
 2. Ordinance 
 3. Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission April 24, 2014 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  04/25/2014 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ORDINANCE CASE 14-OR-001 

SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 
 

 
ARTICLE II, SECTION 23. CONSTRUCTION PLANS (c)  
 

(7) Fill Material Storage.  The location of the fill material pile, which must comply with 
Section 48 of this Ordinance.   

 
ARTICLE III, SECTION 48 
 
Section 48.  Temporary Storage of Fill Material. 
Fill material originating from the land that is the subject of a subdivision application may be 
temporarily stored on said land provided that the developer complies at all times with the following 
requirements: 
 

(a) The fill material shall be stored at the location shown on the approved construction 
plans.   

(b) The fill material shall consist of earthen material originating from the subdivision 
only, shall remain free from debris, and shall be suitable for use as fill material on the 
future phases of the subdivision.  The fill material may not include any material from 
outside of the subdivision. 

(c) Storage of the fill material shall comply with the Storm Water Pollution Prevention 
Plan and other sedimentation and erosion controls adopted by the Texas Commission 
on Environmental Quality. 

(d) The fill material will be placed and stored in such manner so that it is stable, with the 
side slopes no steeper than a 3:1 (h:v) slope. 

(e) The fill material will be located so as not to disturb any wetland areas that may exist 
in the subdivision, and will be placed in a manner and location so as not to adversely 
affect the natural course of drainage across the land or impede drainage from 
neighboring properties. 

(f) Fiscal surety that complies with Section 28 of this Ordinance in an amount equal to 
110% of the cost of removal of the fill material will be filed with the City prior to the 
acceptance of the subdivision that generates the fill material.  The fiscal surety will be 
based on an estimate prepared by the engineer for the subdivision and approved by 
the City Engineer.  

(g) The height of the fill material shall not exceed ten (10’) feet. 
(h) The location of the fill material must comply with the following setback 

requirements: 
(1) 400’ setback from major roadways as identified on the Roadway Plan; 



Attachment # 1                 

 

(2) 100’ setback from all other roadways platted at the time of the fill material pile 
approval; and 
(3) 100’ setback from residential structures. 
(4) The setback requirements may be reduced by twenty-five (25%) percent if 
screening of the fill material is provided.  Screening includes a six (6’) foot privacy 
fence constructed of cedar with steel posts sunk in concrete.  The smooth side of the 
fence shall face away from the fill material. 

(i) Permission to store fill material in the subdivision will expire and terminate in the 
event that a preliminary plat, construction plans, or a final plat for any portion of the 
land expires, or at such time that the improvements for the last phase of the 
subdivision are accepted. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE III, SECTION 42. TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS (b) (2) 
 

(2) Additional street and trail design standards shall be as follows: 
(i) All streets and trails shall be planned to properly integrate with the existing and 

proposed system of local, collector and arterial streets and trails and shall 
conform to the Roadway Plan.  Arterial streets shall be provided to the extent that 
such streets are roughly proportional to the projected impact of the proposed 
development.  Prior to the consideration of an action on a subdivision plan or plat, 
staff shall prepare, and the City Engineer shall review and approve, an 
individualized determination providing a rough proportionality assessment and a 
determination of whether the required dedication(s), payment of fees or 
construction costs, and/or improvement of infrastructure set forth in the 
determination is roughly proportionate to the impact of the proposed subdivision.  
The determination shall include, but shall not necessarily be limited to, a 
comparison of the percentage of land within a subdivision to be dedicated for an 
arterial roadway with the percentage of land in the City and ETJ designated on the 
Roadway Plan as arterial roadways.  The analysis shall include the entire tract of 
land contained within the initial subdivision application required by the City and 
shall include existing roadways outside of the land as deemed appropriate by the 
City Engineer.  If the individualized determination demonstrates that the proposed 
street dedication is not roughly proportional to the impact of the proposed 
subdivision, the additional right-of-way needed to comply with the Roadway Plan 
that exceeds the limits of rough proportionality shall be shown as “Reserved 
Street ROW” on the face of the plat or plan. 

(ii) Local streets shall be designed so as to calm traffic and discourage “cut through” 
traffic including the following: 
a) Residential collector streets shall be preferred over neighborhood collector 

streets in proposed residential areas. 
b) Straight sections of local streets and collector streets with single family or 

two family lots fronting on them shall not exceed one thousand three hundred 
(1,300) feet in length unless other traffic calming design is utilized as 
approved by the City or unless such design is approved by the City Engineer. 

(iii) Streets and trails shall be extended to the boundary lines of the tract as necessary 
for eventual extension to the adjacent tract(s) to ensure that block lengths do not, 



Attachment # 1                 

 

in general, exceed the limits defined by this ordinance and to provide access to 
adjacent property. 

(iv) Provisions shall be made for the appropriate extension of existing and proposed 
streets and trails.  Streets and trails intended to be extended from an adjacent tract 
shall be extended. 

(v) Street and trail right-of-way shall be dedicated with the plat, and the street and 
trail shall be constructed with the subdivision improvements for the plat, for the 
full length and/or width of the lots in the subdivision adjacent to such street and 
trail, unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. 
 

ARTICLE III, SECTION 45. BLOCKS AND LOTS (a)  
 

(a) Blocks. 
(1) The length, width, and shape of blocks shall meet the following standards: 

(i) Provide adequate building sites (lots) suitable to the special needs of the type of use 
designated on the plat; 

(ii) Accommodate lots of the size and dimensions required by this Section and the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance; 

(iii) Provide for convenient access, circulation, control, and safety of street traffic; 
(iv) Minimize reductions in the capacity of adjacent streets in so far as possible by 

reducing the number of turning movement conflicts; 
(v) Provide an appropriate response to the limitations and opportunities of topography. 

and 
(vi) Increase the ability of building sites (lots) to receive or to be protected from solar 

gain as the season requires in order to improve utility efficiency and increase the 
livability of each lot. 

(2) Except for SFR zoning districts, residential blocks shall not exceed a perimeter length of 
three thousand five hundred (3,500) feet, and residential blocks in SFR zoning districts 
shall not exceed a perimeter length of six thousand (6,000) feet except as otherwise 
provided for herein. 

(3) Blocks along arterial streets and blocks containing or proposed to contain primarily 
commercial or industrial uses shall not exceed a perimeter length of five thousand five 
hundred (5,500) feet. 

(4) The width of blocks shall be sufficient to accommodate two (2) tiers of lots with 
minimum depth as required by this Section.  eExceptions to this width shall be permitted 
in blocks adjacent to major arterial or collector streets identified on the Roadway Plan if a 
landscape lot is provided adjacent to the arterial or collector and screening is provided in 
compliance with screening requirements listed in Article VI, Section 8 of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance, or in blocks adjacent to railroads, waterways, or other topographical 
features prohibiting a second lot tier. 

... 
 

(b) Lots.  All land area within the boundaries of the subdivision or re-subdivision except that area 
specifically dedicated as public right-of-way for any purpose shall be designated as a lot. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
(10) Double (reverse) Frontage Lots. 

(i) Single family or two family residential lots shall not have double frontage not take 
access on two (2) non-intersecting local and/or collector streets, and 

(ii) In Rresidential subdivisions, all lots adjacent to an arterial street identified on the 
Roadway Plan shall comply with Article VI, Section 8 of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance which requires these lots to also have frontage on a local street. 
Vehicular access to these lots shall be from the local street only. Non-residential 
lots with double frontage shall have off-set access points to inhibit cut-through 
traffic. 

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

SINGLE-FAMILY & TWO-FAMILY  
LOTS FACING MAJOR ARTERIAL ROADWAY 

M
A

JO
R

 A
R

TE
R

IA
L 

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 

30’ ROW 

10’ LANDSCAPED 
ROW OR LOT 

22’ COMMON 
ACCESS ROAD 

R
O

W
 

FIGURE P 

 

ARTICLE VI, SECTION 8 OF THE COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE  
 

 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

M
A

JO
R

 A
R

TE
R

IA
L 

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 

SINGLE-FAMILY & TWO-FAMILY -LOTS BACKING UP TO  
MAJOR ARTERIAL ROADWAY 

R
O

W
 

10’ LANDSCAPED 
LOT WITH  

PRIVACY FENCE 

FIGURE Q 

 



  
ORDINANCE NO.  

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AMENDING 

SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 10, THE SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE, TO 
ADD PROVISIONS FOR TEMPORARY STOCKPILING OF FILL 
MATERIAL, TO ADD PROVISIONS FOR TRAIL CORRIDORS, AND TO 
MODIFY THE EXCEPTIONS ASSOCIATED WITH BLOCK WIDTH 
REQUIREMENTS, PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, 
PROVIDING SAVINGS, EFFECTIVE DATE AND OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSES, AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 Whereas, the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed amendments to Chapter 
10, Leander Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council at a public hearing has considered the proposed amendments 
and finds that the amendments are reasonable and necessary to protect the health, safety, and 
welfare of the present and future residents of the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings of Fact.  The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated herein as findings of fact.   
 
Section2. Amendment of Article II, Sections 23 (c) (7) – (15).Article II, Sections 23 (c)(7) 
through (15) of Chapter 10, Exhibit A of the Code of Ordinances (the “Subdivision Ordinance”) are 
hereby amended in their entirety to read as follows:  

(7) Fill Material Storage.  The location of the fill material pile, which must comply with 
Section 48 of this Ordinance.   

(8) Street Lighting. The location, size, type and description of streetlights according to City 
Standard Details and Specifications. 

(9) Street Signs. The location, size, type and description of street signs according to City 
Standard Details and Specifications. 

(10) Speed Limit Signs and Permanent Traffic Barricades. The location, size (where 
applicable), and type of speed limit signs and permanent traffic barricades according to 
City Standard Details and Specifications. 

(11) Sidewalks. The location, size and type of sidewalks and pedestrian ramps according to 
City Standard Details and Specification. 

(12) Improvements for Parks and other Public and Common Areas - as identified and/or 
approved on the Preliminary Plat. 

(13) The location, size and description of all Significant Trees (to remain and to be 
removed), and Replacement Trees to meet the requirements of this Ordinance. 

(14) Landscaping and Screening. The location, size and description of all landscaping and 



 

 
 
 -2- 

screening materials as required by the Composite Zoning Ordinance. 
(15) Design Criteria. Final design criteria, reports, calculations, and all other related 

computations, if not previously submitted with the Preliminary Plat. 
 
Section 3. Amendment of Article II, Section 23(c).  Section 23(c), Article II of the 
Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended by adding subsection (16) to read as follows: 

(16)     Cost Estimates. A cost estimate of each required improvement, prepared, signed and 
sealed by a professional engineer licensed to practice in the State of Texas. 

 
Section 4. Amendment of Article III, Section 42 (b) (2).  Article III, Section 42 (b) (2) of the 
Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

(2) Additional street and trail design standards shall be as follows: 
(i) All streets and trails shall be planned to properly integrate with the existing and 

proposed system of local, collector and arterial streets and trails and shall 
conform to the Roadway Plan.  Arterial streets shall be provided to the extent that 
such streets are roughly proportional to the projected impact of the proposed 
development.  Prior to the consideration of an action on a subdivision plan or plat, 
staff shall prepare, and the City Engineer shall review and approve, an 
individualized determination providing a rough proportionality assessment and a 
determination of whether the required dedication(s), payment of fees or 
construction costs, and/or improvement of infrastructure set forth in the 
determination is roughly proportionate to the impact of the proposed subdivision.  
The determination shall include, but shall not necessarily be limited to, a 
comparison of the percentage of land within a subdivision to be dedicated for an 
arterial roadway with the percentage of land in the City and ETJ designated on the 
Roadway Plan as arterial roadways.  The analysis shall include the entire tract of 
land contained within the initial subdivision application required by the City and 
shall include existing roadways outside of the land as deemed appropriate by the 
City Engineer.  If the individualized determination demonstrates that the proposed 
street dedication is not roughly proportional to the impact of the proposed 
subdivision, the additional right-of-way needed to comply with the Roadway Plan 
that exceeds the limits of rough proportionality shall be shown as “Reserved 
Street ROW” on the face of the plat or plan. 

(ii) Local streets shall be designed so as to calm traffic and discourage “cut through” 
traffic including the following: 
a) Residential collector streets shall be preferred over neighborhood collector 

streets in proposed residential areas. 
b) Straight sections of local streets and collector streets with single family or 

two family lots fronting on them shall not exceed one thousand three hundred 
(1,300) feet in length unless other traffic calming design is utilized as 
approved by the City or unless such design is approved by the City Engineer. 



 

 
 
 -3- 

(iii) Streets and trails shall be extended to the boundary lines of the tract as necessary 
for eventual extension to the adjacent tract(s) to ensure that block lengths do not, 
in general, exceed the limits defined by this ordinance and to provide access to 
adjacent property. 

(iv) Provisions shall be made for the appropriate extension of existing and proposed 
streets and trails.  Streets and trails intended to be extended from an adjacent tract 
shall be extended. 

(v) Street and trail right-of-way shall be dedicated with the plat, and the street and 
trail shall be constructed with the subdivision improvements for the plat, for the 
full length and/or width of the lots in the subdivision adjacent to such street and 
trail, unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer. 

 
Section 5. Amendment of Article III, Section 45 (a) (4).  Article III, Section 45 (a) (4) of the 
Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

(4) The width of blocks shall be sufficient to accommodate two (2) tiers of lots with 
minimum depth as required by this Section.  Exceptions to this width shall be permitted 
in blocks adjacent to arterial or collector streets identified on the Roadway Plan if a 
landscape lot is provided adjacent to the arterial or collector street and screening is 
provided in compliance with screening requirements listed in Article VI, Section 8 of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, or in blocks adjacent to railroads, waterways, or other 
topographical features prohibiting a second lot tier. 

 
Section 6. Amendment of Article III, Section 45 (b) (10).  Article III, Section 45 (b) (10) of 
the Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

(10) Double (reverse) Frontage Lots. 
(i) Single family or two family residential lots shall not have double frontage, and 
(ii) In residential subdivisions, all lots adjacent to an arterial street identified on the 

Roadway Plan shall comply with Article VI, Section 8 of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance which requires these lots to also have frontage on a local street. 
Vehicular access to these lots shall be from the local street only. Non-residential 
lots with double frontage shall have off-set access points to inhibit cut-through 
traffic. 

 
Section 7.  Amendment of Article III.  Article III of the Subdivision Ordinances is hereby 
amended by adding Section 48, to be entitled “Temporary Storage of Fill Material”, to read as 
follows: 
 Section 48.  Temporary Storage of Fill Material. 

Fill material originating from the land that is the subject of a subdivision application may 
be temporarily stored on said land provided that the developer complies at all times with 
the following requirements: 
(a) The fill material shall be stored at the location shown on the approved construction 

plans.   



 

 
 
 -4- 

(b) The fill material shall consist of earthen material originating from the subdivision 
only, shall remain free from debris, and shall be suitable for use as fill material on the 
future phases of the subdivision.  The fill material may not include any material from 
outside of the subdivision. 

(c) Storage of the fill material shall comply with the Storm Water Pollution Prevention 
Plan and other sedimentation and erosion controls adopted by the Texas Commission 
on Environmental Quality. 

(d) The fill material will be placed and stored in such manner so that it is stable, with the 
side slopes no steeper than a 3:1 (h:v) slope. 

(e) The fill material will be located so as not to disturb any wetland areas that may exist 
in the subdivision, and will be placed in a manner and location so as not to adversely 
affect the natural course of drainage across the land or impede drainage from 
neighboring properties. 

(f) Fiscal surety that complies with Section 28 of this Ordinance in an amount equal to 
110% of the cost of removal of the fill material will be filed with the City prior to the 
acceptance of the subdivision that generates the fill material.  The fiscal surety will be 
based on an estimate prepared by the engineer for the subdivision and approved by 
the City Engineer.  

(g) The height of the fill material shall not exceed ten (10’) feet. 
(h) The location of the fill material must comply with the following setback 

requirements: 
(1) 400’ setback from major roadways as identified on the Roadway Plan; 
(2) 100’ setback from all other roadways platted at the time of the fill material pile 
approval; and 
(3) 100’ setback from residential structures. 
(4) The setback requirements may be reduced by twenty-five (25%) percent if 
screening of the fill material is provided.  Screening includes a six (6’) foot privacy 
fence constructed of cedar with steel posts sunk in concrete.  The smooth side of the 
fence shall face away from the fill material. 

(i) Permission to store fill material in the subdivision will expire and terminate in the 
event that a preliminary plat, construction plans, or a final plat for any portion of the 
land expires, or at such time that the improvements for the last phase of the 
subdivision are accepted. 

  
Section 8. Amendment of the Definition of “Arterial Street”.  The definition of “arterial 
street” in Section 1 of the Subdivision Ordinance is hereby amended in its entirety to read as 
follows: 

Arterial Street means a street designed to provide connections between municipalities or 
major highways.  Such street may also be referred to a as a “major arterial street” or “major 
arterial roadway” in other sections of the Code of Ordinances. 

 
Section 9. Amendment of Section 28.  Section 28 of the Subdivision Ordinance is hereby 
amended by the addition of subsection 28(g)(4)(ix) to read as follows: 
 (ix) A fiscal surety meeting the requirements of Section 48(f), if required by that Section. 



 

 
 
 -5- 

 
Section 9. Conflicting Ordinances.  Exhibit “A”, Chapter 10, Leander Code of Ordinances is 
amended as provided herein.  All ordinances or parts thereof conflicting or inconsistent with the 
provisions of this ordinance as adopted herein, are hereby amended to the extent of such conflict.  In 
the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this ordinance and any other code or ordinance of 
the City, the terms and provisions of this ordinance shall govern. 
 
Section 10. Savings Clause.  All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved 
as to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting subdivision within the City 
which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued 
violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under 
such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 
disposition by the courts. 
 
Section 11.    Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City 
Charter. 
 
Section 12. Severability.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this ordinance of any 
such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.  If any provision of this Ordinance shall 
be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 13.    Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the 1st day of May, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 





AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 01, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Comprehensive Plan Case 14-CPA-001:  Hold a public hearing 

and consider action on amendments to the Leander Roadway Plan 
as set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Background: Staff is proposing the following amendments to the Roadway Plan: 
 

1. Changing the name from Roadway Plan to Transportation Plan 
2. Adding: 
 Secondary Trail Corridors  
 Kauffman Loop (south of the intersection of Ronald W. 

Reagan Blvd and W SH 29)  
 A2 (Connecting Old 2243 W to Nameless Rd) 
 North/South Connector between South St. and Hero Way 

3. Realigning: 
 A1  
 C2 aka Collaborative Way 
 East Crystal Falls Pkwy 

4. Removing: 
 CR 267 (west of Ronald Reagan Blvd) 
 CR 268 (east of Ronald Reagan Blvd & south of SH 29) 
 CR 270 (north of E. San Gabriel Pkwy) 
 Parkside Pkwy (east of the intersection of CR 175 and 

Journey Pkwy) 
5. Updating roadway names to reflect new names adopted by City 

Council or new roadways that were recently platted 
6. Increasing the width of sidewalks/trails and adding 

sidewalks/trails 
 
Origination: Planning Department 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 
unanimously recommended approval at the April 24, 2014 
meeting. 

   
Attachments: 1.   Current Roadway Plan 

2. Proposed Transportation Plan 
3. Proposed Matrix 
4. Ordinance 
5. Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission April 24, 2014 

  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  04/25/2014 



A1

C3

C1

C10

C11

C2

C7

C8

C5

C9

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HA
LS

EY
 D

R

HERO WAY

C4

LA
KE

LIN
E B

LV
D

CR 179

OSAGE DR

E NEW HOPE RD

CR
 27

0

SONNY DR

WATERFALL AVE

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

VISTA RIDGE DR

MEL MATHIS AVE

CR
 17

9

LA
KE

LIN
E B

LV
D

HERO WAY

CR 179

E NEW HOPE RD

RM 2243

CR 279

183A TOLL RD

W SH 29

CR
 17

5

RM 1431

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

S U
S 1

83

NAMELESS RD

CR 281

CR
 27

3

US
 18

3

S BAGDAD RD

OLD 2243 WEST

CR
 17

6

OSAGE DR

W WHITESTONE BLVD

W NEW HOPE DR

E WHITESTONE BLVD

HERO WAY

S W
ES

T D
R

N BELL BLVD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

CR
 27

0

E NEW HOPE DR

CR 177

BA
GD

AD
 R

D

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

CR 280 - C2

CR
 27

1

CR 179

W SOUTH ST

LEANDER DR

CR
 26

7 -
 C5

CR 175 - OLD SAM BASS RD

HALSEY DR

CR 26
8 - 

C6

N 
US

 18
3

SONNY DR

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

VISTA RIDGE DR

PARKSIDE PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

SOUTH BROOK DR

WATERFALL AVE

SU
NN

Y B
RO

OK
E 

DR

E SOUTH ST

MUNICIPAL DR

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D
MCCARTHUR DR

HAZELWOOD ST

E NEW HOPE DR

SONNY DR

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

RM 14
31

US
 18

3

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

City of Cedar Park, Texas

City of Jonestown, Texas

City Limits
E.T.J.

Roadway Plan Classification
Existing Roads *

Major Arterial
Collector
Required Connector
Toll Road

Proposed Roads
Major Arterial
Collector
Required Connector

RM 2243

Rev. 1 - Revised: City Limit / ETJ
Rev. 2 - Revised: Roadway names  Removed: Cougar Country Dr. (Ord. 10-031-00 passed 12/16/2010)
Rev. 3 - Added: C10 / C11  Removed: SC1  Revised: Color scheme / linetypes / Osage Dr. / Sam Bass Rd. / table (Ord. 12-010-00 passed 02/16/2012)
Rev. 4 - Revised: City Limit / ETJ  Extended: Required connector southward across Hero Way (Ord. 12-019-00 passed 05/03/2012) 
Rev. 5 - Revised: City Limit / ETJ / location of C-8 (Ord. 13-067-00 passed 11/07/2013)

PROPOSED PROP. PAVEMENT
TOLLWAY SEGMENT ROW*** CROSS SECTION****

N S E W
183A All Existing Tollway & Frontage 10' 10'

MAJOR ARTERIAL
Bagdad Road S City Limits to Old 2243 West Existing Existing 6' 8'

Bagdad Road / CR 279  Old 2243 West to CR 280 100' 66' 8' 6'
CR 279 CR 280 to N ETJ Limits 82' 54' 8' 6'

Crystal Falls Parkway US 183 to Lakeline Boulevard Existing Existing 8' 6'
E Crystal Falls Parkway US 183 to Ronald W Reagan Boulevard 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

RM 2243 Hero Way to E City Limits 140' / TOD 2 @ 41' / TOD 6' 8'
Hero Way US 183 to RM 2243 TOD TOD 8' 6'

Old 2243 West / Nameless Road US 183 to 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard 100' 66' 8' 6'
1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard to RM 1431 82' 54' 6' 8' 8' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard S City Limits to Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing 6' 6'
Crystal Falls Parkway to San Gabriel Parkway 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6' 8' 6'

Mel Mathis Avenue South Street to US 183A TOD TOD 22' 22'
Ronald W Reagan Boulevard RM 2243 to S City Limits Existing Existing 8' 8'

RM 2243 to N City Limits Continue Exisitng Continue Exisitng 8' 8'
San Gabriel Parkway Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to 1,000' W of Bagdad Road 140' / TOD 2 @ 41' / TOD 6' 8'

1,000' W of Bagdad Road to Nameless Road 90' 2 @ 24' 6' 8'
Sam Bass Road All 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6'

SH 29 All Existing 6' 8'
US 183 All Existing / TOD Existing / TOD 10' 6'

A1 All 82' 54' 6' 8'

COLLECTOR*****
C1 All 60' 37' 8' 6'

C2 (CR 280) All 64' 41' 8' 6'
C3 Commercial Portion 70' 45' 8' 6'

Residential Portion 60' 37' 8' 6'
C4 All 70' 45' 8' 6'

C5 (CR 267) All 64' 41' 8' 6'
C6 (CR 268) All 64' 41' 8' 6'

C7 All 70' 45' 8' 6'
C8 US 183A to RM 2243 64' 41' 8' 6'

C9 (CR 271) All 70' 45' 8' 6' 6' 8'
C10 RM 1431 to Nameless Road Varies Min of 100' Varies Min of 2 @ 24' 8' 8' 8' 8'
C11 Osage Drive to C10 60' 37' 5' 5'

CR 179 Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to Sam Bass Road 70' 45' 6' 6'
CR 270 All 60' 37' 8' 6'
CR 273 E Crystal Falls Parkway to South Street 64' 41' TOD TOD
CR 281 All 60' 37' 6' 8'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to Crystal Falls Golf Club Existing Existing
E Crystal Falls Parkway Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to E City Limits 70' 45' 8' 6'

Halsey Drive South of C2 70' 45' 6' 6'
North of C2 60' 37' 6' 6'

Hazelwood Street All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Heritage Grove Road All 64' 41' 8' 6'

Horizon Park Boulevard E Crystal Falls Parkway to McCarthur Drive Existing Existing
Lakeline Boulevard San Gabriel Parkway to CR 281 90' 2 @ 18' 6' 8'

Leander Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
McCarthur Drive All Existing Existing
Municipal Drive Bagdad Road to Katherine Way Existing Existing 6' 6'

Katherine Way to West Street 60' 37' 6' 6'
Old Sam Bass Road FM 2243 to Sam Bass Road 64' 41' 8' 6'

Osage Drive Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 Existing Existing 5' 5'
Lakeline Boulevard to Outlook Ridge Loop Existing Existing 5' 5'

Outlook Ridge Loop to RM 1431 70' 37' 5' 5'
RM 2243 (Old) N East Street to Hero Way 70' 48' 8' 6'
Sonny Drive US 183 to West Drive Existing Existing 6' 6'

West Drive to Lakeline Boulevard 64' 41' 6' 6'
South Street (East & West) All Existing Existing 6' 6'

South Brook Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Sunny Brooke Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Vista Ridge Drive Lakeline Boulevard to Bagdad Road 64' 41' 6' 6'
Waterfall Avenue All 60' 37' 6' 6' 6' 6'

West Drive N of Crystal Falls Parkway 60' 37' 6' 6'

          altered to accommodate drainage or as determined appropriate by the City Engineer.  

(See ******)

ROADWAY PLAN ROW, SIDEWALKS, TRAILS & CROSS SECTIONS**

          provided as necessary to match section of opposite streets at intersections.  ROW width may be 
          appropriate transition to provide for right turn lane.  Additional ROW and pavement shall be 

PROPOSED TRAILS
& SIDEWALKS

***      Except  2 @ 41' section, increase ROW width within 300' of  intersection of arterials by 15' with 
**       Streets, sidewalks and trails in TOD to follow Transect Plan and Smart Code.  Street alignments subject to adjustment.
*        Table reflects ultimate road section.  Existing roads may or may not conform to ultimate section.

          Space Master Plan and Composite Zoning Ordinance.  

****     Measurements are to lip of gutter.  Pavement sections subject to modification by City Engineer.
*****    Additional collector streets required as necessary in accordance with the Transportation Criteria 
          Manual for projected traffic and land use.
******   Width and location of sidewalks and trails to comply with requirements of Parks, Recreation & Open 

2007
ROADWAY PLAN

City Of Leander, Texas

Revision 5



San Gabriel R iver Trail

Bloody Hollow Trail

Brushy Creek Main Branch Trail

Sandy Creek Trail

Mason Creek T
ra

il

South Branch Brushy Creek Trail

North Branch Brushy Creek Trail

< To Wilco River Ranch Park

A2

A1

C1

C7

ECFP

HA
LS

EY
 D

R

HERO WAY

TRAVI SS
O PK

WY

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

W 
BR

OA
DE

 S
T

C11

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

CR
 17

6

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

C OLLABORATIVE WAY

METRO DR

A1

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

A2

C11

RM 2243

CR
 27

9

CR 175

W SH 29

183A TOLL RD

RM 1431

RO
NA

LD
W

RE
AG

AN
BL

VD

S U
S 1

83

NAMELESS RD

HERO WAY

CR 281

US
 18

3

S BAGDAD RD

OLD 2243 WEST

CR 280

CR
 17

6

OSAGE DR

W WHITESTONE BLVD

W NEW HOPE DR

E WHITESTONE BLVD

S W
ES

T D
R

N BELL BLVD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

E NEW HOPE DR

BA
GD

AD
 R

D

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

CR
 27

0

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

JOURNEY PKWY

W SOUTH ST

HAL
SE

Y D
R

LEANDER DR
MEL MATHIS AVE

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

KAUFFMAN LOO P

CR
 26

9

N BAGDAD RD

N 
US

 18
3

SO

NNY DR

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

CR 177

VISTA RIDGE DR

HERITAGE GROVE RD

TR
AV

ISSO PKWY

SOUTH BROOK DR

WATERFALL AVE

SU
NN

Y B
RO

OK
E 

DR

VIA DE SIE NNA BLVD

E SOUTH ST

MUNICIPAL DR

MCCARTHUR DR

HAZELWOOD ST

W BROADE ST

SONNY DR

US
 18

3

E NEW HOPE DR

RM 14
31

RONALD
W

REAGAN BLVD

OSAGE DR

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

City of Cedar Park, Texas

City of Jonestown, Texas

City Limits

E.T.J.

Transportation Plan Classification
Existing

Toll Road

Arterial

Collector

Required Connector

Secondary Trail

Proposed
Arterial

Collector

Required Connector

Secondary Trail

RM 2243

Transportation Plan

City Of Leander, Texas

E WOODVIEW DR

PROPOSED PROPOSED
TRAIL SEGMENT ROW TRAIL WIDTH

Brushy Creek - North Branch Nameless Rd. to  Convergance w/North Branch * 8' - 10'
Brushy Creek - South Branch Lakeline Blvd. to Convergance w/North Branch * 8' - 10'
Brushy Creek - Main Branch Convergance of N & S Branches to Southern ETJ * 8' - 10'
Mason Creek Lakeline Blvd. to Bagdad Rd. Existing

Bagdad Rd. to Brushy Creek Main Branch * 8' - 10'
San Gabriel River Trail Bagdad Rd. to Georgetown's Garey Park * 8' - 10'
Sandy Creek Future Sandy Cr. Community Park to Nameless Rd. * 8' - 10'
Nameless Valley Ranch Trail Crystal Falls W. PEC to Sandy Cr. Tail * 8' - 10'

* Wiidth determined by the Parks & Recreation Director on a site-by-site basis.  Minimum width 25'.  Land must 
be above the top bank and suitable for trail construction.

SECONDARY TRAILS 

1

PROPOSED PROP. PAVEMENT
TOLLWAY SEGMENT ROW (Min) 3 CROSS SECTION 4

N S E W
183A All Existing Tollway & Frontage 10' 10'

MAJOR ARTERIAL
A1 All 82' 54' 6' 10'
A2 All 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Bagdad Road S City Limits to Old 2243 West Existing Existing 6' 8'
Bagdad Road / CR 279  Old 2243 West to CR 280 100' 66' 10' 6'

CR 175 All 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6'
CR 279 CR 280 to N ETJ Limits 82' 54' 8' 6'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 Existing Existing 8' 6'
E Crystal Falls Parkway US 183 to CR 175 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Hero Way Inside TOD TOD TOD 10' 6'
Hero Way TOD boundary to RM 2243 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Old 2243 West / Nameless Road 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 100' 66' 10' 6'
RM 1431 to 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard 82' 54' 6' 10' 10' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard S City Limits to Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing 6' 6'
Crystal Falls Parkway to Old 2243 W 90' 2 @ 24' 10' 6'
Old 2243 W to W San Gabriel Pkwy 90' 2 @ 24' 10' 6'

Mel Mathis Avenue RM 2243 to US 183A TOD TOD 22' 22'
Ronald W Reagan Boulevard All Existing Existing 10' 10'

RM 2243 Hero Way to E ETJ 110' 2 @ 27' 6' 10'
San Gabriel Parkway 1,000' W of Bagdad Road to Ronald W Reagan Boulevard 110' / TOD 2 @ 27' / TOD 6' 10'

Nameless Road to 1,000' W of Bagdad Road 110' 2 @ 27' 6' 10'
SH 29 All Existing 6' 10'
US 183 All Existing / TOD Existing / TOD 10' 6'

COLLECTOR 5 (See 6)
Broade Street Commercial Portion 70' 45' 8' 6'

Residential Portion 60' 37' 8' 6'
C1 All 60' 37' 8' 6'
C7 All 70' 45' 8' 6'
C11 All 60' 37' 5' 5'

Collaborative Way All 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 175 RM 2243 to CR 177 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 280 All 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 281 All 60' 37' 6' 8'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to Crystal Falls Golf Club Existing Existing
E Crystal Falls Parkway/CR 177 Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to E City Limits 70' 45' 8' 6'

Halsey Drive South of Collaborative Way 70' 45' 6' 6'
North of Collaborative Way 60' 37' 6' 6'

Hazelwood Street All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Heritage Grove Road All 64' 41' 8' 6'

Horizon Park Boulevard E Crystal Falls Parkway to RM 2243 64' 41' 6' 8'
Horizon Park Boulevard McCarthur Drive to E Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing

Journey Pkwy Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to Sam Bass Road 70' 45' 6' 8'
Kauffman Loop All 70' 45' 8' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard San Gabriel Parkway to CR 281 90' 2 @ 18' 10' 6'
Leander Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'

McCarthur Drive All Existing Existing
Metro Drive All 70' 45' 8' 6'

Municipal Drive Bagdad Road to Northern Trail Existing Existing 6' 6'
Northern Trail to West Street 60' 37' 6' 6'

Osage Drive Outlook Ridge Loop to US 183 Existing Existing 5' 5'
Outlook Ridge Loop to RM 1431 70' 37' 5' 5'

Raider Way E Woodview Dr to RM 2243 64 41 6' 8'
183A to E Woodview Dr 70' 45' 6' 8'

RM 2243 N East Street to Hero Way 70' 45' 8' 6'
Sonny Drive West Drive to Leander Dr Existing Existing 6' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard to West Drive 64' 41' 6' 6'
South Street (East & West) All Existing Existing 6' 6'

South Brook Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Sunny Brooke Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Travisso Parkway All Varies Min of 100' Varies Min of 2 @ 24' 8' 8' 8' 8'
Via De Sienna Blvd All 60' 37' 8' 6'
Vista Ridge Drive Lakeline Boulevard to Bagdad Road 64' 41' 6' 6'
Waterfall Avenue All 60' 37' 6' 6' 6' 6'

West Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
E Woodview Dr All 70' 45' 8' 6'

TRANSPORTATION PLAN ROW, SIDEWALKS, TRAILS & CROSS SECTIONS 2

PROPOSED TRAILS
& SIDEWALKS

3 - Increase ROW width within 300' of  intersection of arterials by 15' with appropriate transition transitation to provide for right turn lane.  Additional ROW and pavement 
shall be provided as necessary to match section of  opposite streets at intersections.  ROW width may be altered to accommodate drainage or as determined appropriate 
by the City Engineer.  

2 - Streets, sidewalks and trails in TOD to follow Transect Plan and Smart Code.  Street alignments subject to adjustment.
1 - Table reflects ultimate road section.  Existing roads may or may not conform to ultimate section.

7 - Where the proposed ROW, sidewalk and pavement result in less than 4' of landscape/lawn area per side of roadway behind the curb, additional ROW should be 
dedicated to meet the 4' minimum width lawn area.  In lieu of additional ROW, commercial tracts can place the sidewalk in a pedestrian access easement and residential 
developments can provide a landscape lot parallel to the ROW. 

4 - Measurements are to lip of gutter.  Pavement sections subject to modification by City Engineer.
5 - Additional collector streets required as necessary in accordance with the Transportation Criteria Manual for projected traffic and land use.
6 - Width and location of sidewalks and trails to comply with requirements of Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan & Composite Zoning Ordinance



PROPOSED PROP. PAVEMENT
TOLLWAY SEGMENT ROW (Min) 3 CROSS SECTION 4

N S E W
183A All Existing Tollway & Frontage 10' 10'

MAJOR ARTERIAL
A1 All 82' 54' 6' 10'
A2 All 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Bagdad Road S City Limits to Old 2243 West Existing Existing 6' 8'
Bagdad Road / CR 279  Old 2243 West to CR 280 100' 66' 10' 6'

CR 175 All 90' 2 @ 24' 8' 6'
CR 279 CR 280 to N ETJ Limits 82' 54' 8' 6'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 Existing Existing 8' 6'
E Crystal Falls Parkway US 183 to CR 175 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Hero Way Inside TOD TOD TOD 10' 6'
Hero Way TOD boundary to RM 2243 110' 2 @ 27' 8' 6'

Old 2243 West / Nameless Road 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard to US 183 100' 66' 10' 6'
RM 1431 to 1,000' W of Lakeline Boulevard 82' 54' 6' 10' 10' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard S City Limits to Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing 6' 6'
Crystal Falls Parkway to Old 2243 W 90' 2 @ 24' 10' 6'
Old 2243 W to W San Gabriel Pkwy 90' 2 @ 24' 10' 6'

Mel Mathis Avenue RM 2243 to US 183A TOD TOD 22' 22'
Ronald W Reagan Boulevard All Existing Existing 10' 10'

RM 2243 Hero Way to E ETJ 110' 2 @ 27' 6' 10'
San Gabriel Parkway 1,000' W of Bagdad Road to Ronald W Reagan Boulevard 110' / TOD 2 @ 27' / TOD 6' 10'

Nameless Road to 1,000' W of Bagdad Road 110' 2 @ 27' 6' 10'
SH 29 All Existing 6' 10'
US 183 All Existing / TOD Existing / TOD 10' 6'

COLLECTOR 5

Broade Street Commercial Portion 70' 45' 8' 6'
Residential Portion 60' 37' 8' 6'

C1 All 60' 37' 8' 6'
C7 All 70' 45' 8' 6'
C11 All 60' 37' 5' 5'

Collaborative Way All 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 175 RM 2243 to CR 177 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 280 All 64' 41' 8' 6'
CR 281 All 60' 37' 6' 8'

Crystal Falls Parkway Lakeline Boulevard to Crystal Falls Golf Club Existing Existing
E Crystal Falls Parkway/CR 177 Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to E City Limits 70' 45' 8' 6'

Halsey Drive South of Collaborative Way 70' 45' 6' 6'
North of Collaborative Way 60' 37' 6' 6'

Hazelwood Street All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Heritage Grove Road All 64' 41' 8' 6'

Horizon Park Boulevard E Crystal Falls Parkway to RM 2243 64' 41' 6' 8'
Horizon Park Boulevard McCarthur Drive to E Crystal Falls Parkway Existing Existing

Journey Pkwy Ronald W Reagan Boulevard to Sam Bass Road 70' 45' 6' 8'
Kauffman Loop All 70' 45' 8' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard San Gabriel Parkway to CR 281 90' 2 @ 18' 10' 6'
Leander Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'

McCarthur Drive All Existing Existing
Metro Drive All 70' 45' 8' 6'

Municipal Drive Bagdad Road to Northern Trail Existing Existing 6' 6'
Northern Trail to West Street 60' 37' 6' 6'

Osage Drive Outlook Ridge Loop to US 183 Existing Existing 5' 5'
Outlook Ridge Loop to RM 1431 70' 37' 5' 5'

Raider Way E Woodview Dr to RM 2243 64 41 6' 8'
183A to E Woodview Dr 70' 45' 6' 8'

RM 2243 N East Street to Hero Way 70' 45' 8' 6'
Sonny Drive West Drive to Leander Dr Existing Existing 6' 6'

Lakeline Boulevard to West Drive 64' 41' 6' 6'
South Street (East & West) All Existing Existing 6' 6'

South Brook Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Sunny Brooke Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
Travisso Parkway All Varies Min of 100' Varies Min of 2 @ 24' 8' 8' 8' 8'

Via De Sienna Blvd All 60' 37' 8' 6'
Vista Ridge Drive Lakeline Boulevard to Bagdad Road 64' 41' 6' 6'
Waterfall Avenue All 60' 37' 6' 6' 6' 6'

West Drive All 60' 37' 6' 6'
E Woodview Dr All 70' 45' 8' 6'

(See 6)

TRANSPORTATION PLAN ROW, SIDEWALKS, TRAILS & CROSS SECTIONS 2

PROPOSED TRAILS
& SIDEWALKS

3 - Increase ROW width within 300' of  intersection of arterials by 15' with appropriate transition transitation to provide for right turn lane.  Additional ROW and pavement shall be 
2 - Streets, sidewalks and trails in TOD to follow Transect Plan and Smart Code.  Street alignments subject to adjustment.
1 - Table reflects ultimate road section.  Existing roads may or may not conform to ultimate section.

4 - Measurements are to lip of gutter.  Pavement sections subject to modification by City Engineer.
5 - Additional collector streets required as necessary in accordance with the Transportation Criteria Manual for projected traffic and land use.
6 - Width and location of sidewalks and trails to comply with requirements of Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan & Composite Zoning Ordinance



Replacing Ordinance 12-019-00 
 

 1 

ORDINANCE NO.  _______________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS,AMENDING 
THEROADWAY PLAN OF THE CITY OF LEANDER; REPEALING THE 
PREVIOUS ROADWAY PLAN; PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR 
RELATED MATTERS. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and reasonable for the City of Leander, Texas, a Texas home-

rule municipality, (herein the “City”) to update its Roadway Plan for the City, which facilitates the 
adequate provision of transportation,to lessen congestion in the streets, secure its citizens and 
visitors from fire, panic and other dangers, and promote the general health and welfare; 

 
WHEREAS, the City in anticipation of growth and expansion desires to plan for the 

orderly and efficient growth of the City;  
 
  WHEREAS, after review, inquiry and the opportunity for citizen participation at public 
hearings and an opportunity for the Planning and Zoning Commission to review and provide a 
recommendation on the proposed amendments to the Roadway Plan, the City Council has found the 
adoption of the Roadway Plan hereinafter set forth and listed in this Ordinance is reasonable and 
necessary for the public health, safety, morals and welfare.      

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.   Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 
Section 2. Roadway  Plan Adopted.  (a)  The City Council hereby adopts the 

Roadway Plan of the City of Leander (the “Plan”) that is spread upon the minutes of this 
meeting.  The Plan shall be kept in the office of the City Secretary and shall be available for 
public inspection during normal office hours.  

 
(b) The Roadway Plan refers to certain streets as arterial streets, and such streets were 

referred to as “major arterial streets” in the prior version of the Roadway Plan.  References to 
“major arterial streets” in Chapter 14 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (which are the City’s 
zoning regulations) shall mean “arterial streets” identified in the Roadway Plan, until such time 
that Chapter 14 is amended to change the term “major arterial streets” to “arterial streets”. 

 
 Section 3.  Amendment of Conflicting Ordinances.  The City of Leander Roadway 
Plan previously adopted by Ordinance No. 12-019-00 is hereby repealed and replaced by the 
Roadway Plan adopted herein.  The City of Leander Comprehensive Plan, all ordinances and 
parts of ordinances, and all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict with this Ordinance are 
amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this 



Replacing Ordinance 12-019-00 
 

 2 

Ordinance and any other code, ordinance, or plan of the City, the terms and provisions of this 
Ordinance shall govern.  
 
 Section 4. Savings.  All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved 
as to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting the Roadway Plan within 
the City which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such 
accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or 
not, under such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted until 
final disposition by the courts. 
 
 Section 5.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after 
its passage on the date shown below. 
 
 Section 6.   Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 1st day of May 2014. 
       
 
Attest:       THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________                        _______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
        
        
 
 
 







AGENDA ITEM # 15 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 01, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case #14-Z-001: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of two parcels of land located along Ronald Reagan 
Boulevard on the east side, south of High Lonesome Trail and north 
of CR 264 for 5.52 acres more or less. Parcels #R473782 and 
R032342. Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B (Single-
Family Rural) and SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban).  The property 
is proposed to be zoned GC-3-B (General Commercial), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.   

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: SEC Planning, LLC on behalf of Phillip C. Joseph. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of LC-2-B (Local 
Commercial) per the staff recommendation at the April 24, 2014 
meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map  
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.   Letter of Intent 
 5.  Ordinance 
 7. Minutes – Planning & Zoning Commission April 24, 2014  
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 04/25/2014 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-001 

Spenn Tract 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Philip Joseph 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban)  
 Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) – pending annexation 
    
Proposed Zoning: GC-3-B (General Commercial) 
 
Size and Location: The property is located at 17740 and 17720 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and 

is approximately 5.521 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  SFR-2-B Under Construction Single-Family Neighborhood (Reagan’s 
Overlook) 

EAST OCL Developed Single Family Home 

SOUTH Interim SFS-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

WEST GC-3-C Non-Developed Commercial Property (proposed Palmera 
Ridge PUD) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

 
USE COMPONENT: 

 
LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 
grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 5:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
TYPE 3:   
Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 

service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

Intent:   
(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 

adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 
(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 

or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, LI and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from Interim SFS-2-B (Single Family 
Suburban) district and Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to GC-3-B (General Commercial) 
district.  Half of this property is currently subject to a voluntary annexation.  This process will 
run concurrently with the rezoning request.  The property is located at the edge of the Town 
Center node, which is centered at the intersection of Hero Way and Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. The 
Town Center node encourages a mix of uses including apartments, major commercial and retail, 
and office uses. 
 
Immediately north of this property is the single family Reagan’s Overlook subdivision which is 
currently under construction, and immediately to the south and east of this property are presently 



Attachment # 1                 

 

developed single family homes. West of the property, on the adjacent side of Ronald W. Reagan 
Blvd is a non-developed GC-3-C zoned district that is currently part of the proposed Palmera 
Ridge PUD. 
 
The intent statements of the GC component speaks to allowing for small and large scale 
commercial and retail development uses located in high traffic areas.  It also notes that access 
should be provided through an arterial street, and that the heaviest concentration of this 
component should be located at intersections of arterial streets.  
 
The proposed Type 3 site component associated with the GC use component permits the use of 
the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and storage or accessory 
buildings.   Permitted outdoor uses include: 
 Outdoor Display (limited 30% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Storage (limited 20% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Fuel Sales 
 Overhead Commercial Doors  
 Drive-Through Lanes (also permitted in Type 2) 

 
The proposed Type B architectural component requires that 85% of the street facing walls are 
masonry and the 50% of the overall structure is masonry.   
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends denial of the requested GC-3-B (General Commercial) and approval of LC-2-
B (Local Commercial) district.  The LC use component permits the development of small scale 
commercial, retail, personal services and office uses.  The intent is for this use component to be 
located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday needs of the 
nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  In addition, the 
Type 2 site component limits the amount of outdoor activity and is an appropriate use located 
next to residential neighborhoods.  



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
PLANNING ANALYSIS  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-001 

Spenn Tract 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Philip Joseph 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban)  
 Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) – pending annexation 
    
Proposed Zoning: GC-3-B (General Commercial) 
 
Size and Location: The property is located at 17740 and 17720 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and 

is approximately 5.521 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  SFR-2-B Under Construction Single-Family Neighborhood (Reagan’s 
Overlook) 

EAST OCL Developed Single Family Home 

SOUTH Interim SFS-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

WEST GC-3-C Non-Developed Commercial Property (proposed Palmera 
Ridge PUD) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

 
USE COMPONENT: 

 
LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 
grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 5:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
TYPE 3:   
Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 

service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

Intent:   
(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 

adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 
(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 

or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, LI and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from Interim SFS-2-B (Single Family 
Suburban) district and Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to GC-3-B (General Commercial) 
district.  Half of this property is currently subject to a voluntary annexation.  This process will 
run concurrently with the rezoning request.  The property is located at the edge of the Town 
Center node, which is centered at the intersection of Hero Way and Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. The 
Town Center node encourages a mix of uses including apartments, major commercial and retail, 
and office uses. 
 
Immediately north of this property is the single family Reagan’s Overlook subdivision which is 
currently under construction, and immediately to the south and east of this property are presently 



Attachment # 1                 

 

developed single family homes. West of the property, on the adjacent side of Ronald W. Reagan 
Blvd is a non-developed GC-3-C zoned district that is currently part of the proposed Palmera 
Ridge PUD. 
 
The intent statements of the GC component speaks to allowing for small and large scale 
commercial and retail development uses located in high traffic areas.  It also notes that access 
should be provided through an arterial street, and that the heaviest concentration of this 
component should be located at intersections of arterial streets.  
 
The proposed Type 3 site component associated with the GC use component permits the use of 
the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and storage or accessory 
buildings.   Permitted outdoor uses include: 

 Outdoor Display (limited 30% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Storage (limited 20% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Fuel Sales 
 Overhead Commercial Doors  
 Drive-Through Lanes (also permitted in Type 2) 

 
The proposed Type B architectural component requires that 85% of the street facing walls are 
masonry and the 50% of the overall structure is masonry.   
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends denial of the requested GC-3-B (General Commercial) and approval of LC-2-
B (Local Commercial) district.  The LC use component permits the development of small scale 
commercial, retail, personal services and office uses.  The intent is for this use component to be 
located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday needs of the 
nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  In addition, the 
Type 2 site component limits the amount of outdoor activity and is an appropriate use located 
next to residential neighborhoods.  



REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA RIDGE 2B

2B

2B

CR 264

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

AIRPO
RT D

R

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-001
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Spenn Tract

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



CR 264

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-001 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Spenn Tract

S WEST DR



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 4



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO GC-3-B 
(GENERAL COMMERCIAL); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 5.52 acres, more or less, 
located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, 
legally described as 5.52 acres more or less out of the A. Smith Survey AW0559; more 
particularly described in Document Number 2013103652 of the Official Public Records of 
Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax identification number R473782 and R032342.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to GC-3-B (General 
Commercial). 
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 1st day of May, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 15th day of May, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



2B

2B

CR 264

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
14-Z-001
Spenn Tract

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation





AGENDA ITEM # 16 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 01, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 13-Z-025: Consider action on the rezoning of a tract 

of land located on the northwest corner of Osage Drive and 
Highland Trail; 0.94 acres more or less out of the AW0896–
Morris, J Survey; WCAD Parcels #R484296. Currently, the 
property is zoned SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban). The property 
isproposed to be zoned PUD (Planned Unit Development), 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Samuel Kiger, P.E. on behalf of Lookout Development 

Group LP.  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

motioned to approve the request with staff recommendations and 
the motion failed with a five to two vote at the March 27, 2014 
meeting.  The City Council tabled the request at the April 03. 2014 
meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.  Proposed PUD 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6.   Ordinance 
 7.   Letters from Neighboring Property Owners 
 8.   Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission March 27, 2014 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  04/04/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 13-Z-025 

HIGHLANDS PUD 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Lookout Development Group LP. 
 
Current Zoning: SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located on the northwest corner of Osage Drive and 

Highland Trail and is approximately 0.94 acres in size. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Winkley Elementary School 

EAST LC-2-B Undeveloped Land Zoned for Local Commercial 

SOUTH SFU-2-B Established Single-Family Homes (Highlands Neighborhood) 

WEST SFU-2-B Established Single-Family Homes (Highlands Neighborhood) 
        

 
  



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits local office use.  In addition, the PUD will prohibit uses, limit 
hours of operation, determine access and parking locations, increase the landscaping 
requirements, and establish the architectural standards.  The intent of this zoning district is to 
cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent single-family 
residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region.  
 

LO – LOCAL OFFICE:   
Features:  Office, assisted living, day care. Hours of operation: 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-

Thurs., 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 
Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact office uses or similar uses which may be 

located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  Access should be provided by a collector or 
higher classification street.  This component is intended to help provide for land use transitions 
from local or general commercial or from arterial streets to residential development. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 1:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 5% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; 150% of 

standard landscaping; pedestrian scale signage and lighting; scale of buildings limited; mansion 
style multi-family; at least eighty-five percent (85%) of multi-family units are required to have 
at least one enclosed garage parking space; alley access to SFL and SFT; accessory dwellings 
for SFT and SFE. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 1 site component is intended to be utilized typically for non-residential or multi-family 

developments that have frontage on a local residential street or residential collector street and are 
bounded by single-family development on at least one side.  This component is also intended to be 
utilized for single-family and two-family residential lots backing up to or siding to a major 
thoroughfare. 

(2)  This component ensures that development will not have site intensive uses or large buildings 
and will ensure that development is designed to a form and scale that is compatible with 
residential neighborhoods. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE A:   
Features:  85% masonry; 5 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type A architectural component is intended to be utilized for high quality developments or to 

provide variety as an additional option for portions of a residential development and may be 
utilized in or adjacent to single-family uses.   



Attachment # 1                 

 

(2) This component is intended to be utilized for single-family development that backs up to, or sides 
to, a major thoroughfare. 

(3) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component.  This standard may be utilized to 
help ensure compatibility for non-residential uses, multi-family, two-family, townhouse or small 
lot residential development with adjacent property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended to be utilized for buildings requiring heights greater than those 
provided in other architectural components.   

(5) This component may be utilized for any high profile development, for any property in a prominent 
location or at an important gateway to the community. 

(6) This component is not intended to become an involuntary standard for the majority of a single-
family subdivision, especially with SFR, SFE, SFS, SFU and SFC components. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Establish high standards for development. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a small professional office or a medical office at this location.  The base 
zoning district for the PUD is LO-1-A (Local Office).  The Local Office use component allows 
for small scale, limited impact office uses located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  This 
component is intended to provide a land use transition from more intense commercial districts or 
arterial streets to residential development.   
 
In addition, the Type 1 site component is intended for projects adjacent to residential and ensures 
that development will not have site intensive uses or large buildings.  The form and scale must be 
designed so that it is compatible with a residential neighborhood.  This site component requires a 
minimum of 150% of the standard landscape requirements for area and plant materials and that 
the detention/water quality ponds use earthen berms.  The Type 1 site component prohibits the 
following uses: 
 Outdoor Display and Storage 
 Outdoor Entertainment Venues 
 Outdoor Fuel Sales 
 Overhead Commercial Doors 
 Drive-Through Lanes  

 
The Type A architectural component requires at least eight-five (85%) of the exterior surface 
area walls are masonry and that there are a minimum of five design features.  This component is 
intended to provide high building standards and ensure compatibility between non-residential 
and residential uses. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

In addition, the applicant is proposing the following additional restrictions: 
 Business hours shall be no earlier than 8:00 a.m. and no later than 6:00 p.m.   
 Access to the parking lot will not be allowed from Highland Trail, but will be allowed 

through a joint driveway from the mail kiosk site connecting to Osage Drive.  The 
parking will be located behind the structure as shown in the attached PUD Plan.   

 The architecture of the building shall be complementary to the single-family 
neighborhood by having a pitched roof and building massing as depicted in the attached 
PUD Plan. 

 The landscaping and landscape area shall be increased by 50% of the current 
requirements.   
 

The following uses shall be prohibited: 
 Bar, nightclub or private club;  
 Entertainment venues including bowling alleys, golf practice ranges, miniature golf 

establishments, theaters, amusement parks, arcades, arenas, stadiums, gymnasiums, skating 
rinks, commercial sports venues, indoor shooting range; 

 Sexually oriented businesses 
 Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, repair, body shop 
 Animal hospital, veterinarian, animal boarding including a crematory associated with such use 

on site, or a crematory associated with a cemetery, as long as the crematory stack is located at 
least two hundred feet (200’) from a restaurant, or associated parking, or a residential zoning 
district (unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses).  Any commercial enterprise 
which includes an outdoor animal yard or any other commercial un-soundproofed animal area 
containing five or more animals is required to be at least two hundred feet (200’) from any 
residential district (unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses) and is required to be 
combined with a Type 3, 4 or 5 site component.  

 (For lots or tracts three or more acres in size) ranches, dairy farms, stables, riding academies 
and roping arenas; including the feeding, raising and breeding of agricultural livestock and 
exotic hoof stock 

 Any uses permitted in the HC (Heavy Commercial) use component 
 Bingo Parlor 
 Pawn Shop 
 Tattoo and/or Body Piercing Parlor  
 RV, trailer, commercial motor vehicle and boat outdoor storage 
 Transportation related facilities including commercial parking lots, passenger terminals, taxi 

cab stations and mass transit terminals 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD.  The LO use component is intended to 
provide a land use transition from more intense commercial districts or arterial streets to 
residential development.  In addition, the proposed Type 1 site component restricts the size of the 
buildings and ensures that development is designed to a form and scale that is compatible with 
residential neighborhoods.  The requested PUD meets the intent statements of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 



HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

WINKLEY
ES

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

3B

2A

HIGHLAND TRL

OSAGE DR

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

POW WOW

ALAMO BOUND

RAINDANCE

QUICK FORT

SUN MOUNTAIN
THUNDER HORSE

GR
AP

EV
IN

E 
CA

NY
ON

 TR
L

RUSTY SPUR

BUFFALO SPEEDWAY

RU
NN

ING
 W

YL
D

MISTY RIDGE

BUFFALO THUNDER

WESTERN JUSTICE

CO
ST

A A
ZU

L C
V

SKY CORRAL RD

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 13-Z-025
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Highland Trails PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
LI
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

WINKLEY
ES

HIGHLAND TRL

OSAGE DR

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

POW WOW

RAINDANCE

ALAMO BOUND

QUICK FORT

SUN MOUNTAIN
THUNDER HORSE

GR
AP

EV
IN

E C
AN

YO
N 

TR
L

MISTY RIDGE

RUNNING WYLD

RUSTY SPUR

CO
ST

A A
ZU

L C
V

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 13-Z-025 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Highland Trails PUD






IN THE CITY OF LEANDER, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS






Date: March 26, 2014



 
 






 Bar, nightclub or private club;

 Entertainment venues including bowling alleys, golf practice ranges, miniature golf 

establishments, theaters, amusement parks, arcades, arenas, stadiums, 

gymnasiums, skating rinks, commercial sports venues, indoor shooting r ange;

 Sexually oriented businesses;

 Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, repair, body shop;

 Animal hospital, veterinarian, animal boarding including a crematory associated with 

such use on site, or a crematory associated with a cemetery, as long as the 

crematory stack is located at least two hundred feet (200’) from a restaurant, or 

associated parking, or a residential zoning district (unless such district is utilized for 

non-residential uses).  Any commercial enterprise which includes an out door animal 

yard or any other commercial un -soundproofed animal area containing five or more 

animals is required to be at least two hundred feet (200’) from any residential district 

(unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses) and is require d to be 

combined with a Type 3, 4 or 5 site component; 

 (For lots or tracts three or more acres in size) ranches, dairy farms, stables, riding 

academies and roping arenas; including the feeding, raising and breeding of 

agricultural livestock and exotic hoof stock;

 Any uses permitted in the LI (Light Industrial) use component;

 Bingo Parlor;

 Pawn Shop;

 Tattoo and/or Body Piercing Parlor; 

 RV, trailer, commercial motor vehicle and boat outdoor storage;

 Transportation related facilities including commercial parkin g lots, passenger 

terminals, taxi cab stations and mass transit terminals

1. Layout is Conceptual.

2. Business hours shall be no earlier than 8am and no later than 6pm.

    Lighting shall be shielded  to ensure no light spillage on surrounding property.

3. No Parcel shall be used for any of the following  uses, directly or indirectly:

4. No access to the parking lot will be allowed from Highland Trail. Access to the

    parking lot will be allowed only from Osage Drive through a joint driveway from the

    mail kiosk site.

5. Parking will be located behind the structure.

6. The architecture of the building shall be complementary to the single-family

    neighborhood and the structure shall have a pitched roof.

7. The landscaping and the landscape area shall be increased by 50% of the

    current requirement per Type 1 Site Component regulations for a total of

    150% of the requirement.

8. The base zoning district for this PUD shall be LO-1-A. PUD will comply with all

    architectural, landscape and elevation requirements for City of Leander Zoning

    Ordinance LO-1-A.





rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING ONE PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SFU-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 0.94 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and “B”, 
generally located on the northwest corner of Highland Trail and Osage Drive; legally described as 
0.94 acres more or less out of the J. W. Morris Survey, more particularly described in Document 
Number 2007006054, Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax 
identification number R484296.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) known as the Highland Trail PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in 
accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibit “C”, which are hereby 
adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to the 
extent not amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this Ordinance shall 
control.   
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 1st day of May, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 15th day of May, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



 

1805 Ouida Dr., Austin, Texas 78728 ● Firm # 10032000  
Phone (512)267-7430 ● Fax (512)836-8385 

Page 1 of 1 

 
 

LOOKOUT PARTNERS 
HIGHLANDS 1-4, LOT 1  
0.940 ACRES 
 
DESCRIPTION OF 0.940 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, OUT OF 
THE J. W. MORRIS SURVEY NO. 530, ABS 896, BEING A PORTION OF A 168.821 ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED OF RECORD TO LOOKOUT DEVELOPMENT GROUP, L.P. IN 
DOCUMENT NO. 2007006054, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; 
SAID 0.940 ACRE TRACT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2” iron rod found in the curving westerly line of Highland Trail (60’ R.O.W.) of a curve 
to the right at the most easterly or northeast corner of LISD Elementary School No. 17, a subdivision of 
record in Cabinet CC, Slides 48-50, Plat Records of Williamson County, Texas, for the most northerly corner 
of the herein described tract; 
 
THENCE with the westerly line of said Highland Trail, the following three (3) courses: 
 

1. Along said curve to the right, an arc length of 77.78 feet, with a radius of 268.00 feet, and a chord 
which bears S29°01'52”E, a distance of 77.51 feet to a1/2” iron rod found at the end of said curve; 
 

2. S20°56'36"E, a distance of 186.37 feet to a 1/2” iron rod found at the point of curvature of a curve 
return to the right;  

 
3. Along said curve return to the right, an arc length of 30.98 feet, with a radius of 20.00 feet, and a 

chord which bears S24°01'46”W, a distance of 27.97 feet to a1/2” iron rod found at the end of said 
curve in the northerly line of Osage Drive (120’ R.O.W.); 

 
THENCE with the northerly line of said Osage Drive, the following two (2) courses: 
 

1. S68°33'13"W, a distance of 55.68 feet to a 1/2” iron rod found at the point of curvature of a curve to 
the left; 

 
2. Along said curve to the left, an arc length of 117.90 feet, with a radius of 785.00 feet, and a chord 

which bears S62°57'43”W, a distance of 117.79 feet to an iron rod with G&R Cap set, for the most 
southerly corner of the herein described tract; 

 
THENCE N31°20'26”W, over and across said 168.21 acre tract, a distance of 112.78 feet to an iron rod with 
G&R Cap set in the southeasterly line of said LISD Elementary School No. 17, for the most westerly corner 
of the herein described tract 
 
THENCE N26°34'54”E, with the southeasterly line of said LISD Elementary School No. 17, a distance of 
273.90 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing an area of 0.940 acres of land, more or less. 
 
___________________________________________ 
Phillip L. McLaughlin   04-03-13 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 5300 
 
Bearings are based on the Texas Coordinate System, NAD 83, Central Zone. 
G&R Surveying Project No. 11292     Attachments: None 

pmclaughlin
PHIL SIGNATURE

pmclaughlin
PHIL SEAL

rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 1

WINKLEY
ES

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH IV3A

3B

2A

2A

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

HIGHLAND TRL

POW WOW

QUICK FORT

OSAGE DR

SILVER SPUR LN

GR
AN

ITE
 C

RE
EK

 D
R

ALAMO BOUND

RAINDANCE

SUN MOUNTAIN

LONG BOW DR

MISTY RIDGE

RUSTY SPUR

BUFFALO THUNDER

TRIBAL WAY

WIGWAM

CROSS DRAW

THUNDER HORSE

LEADERS LN

WESTERN JUSTICE
GR

AP
EV

IN
E 

CA
NY

ON
 TR

L

SIGNATURE LN
ST

AR
R 

PA
SS

RUNNING WYLD

TALL CHIEF

WOLF DANCER
SKY CORRAL RD

CO
ST

A A
ZU

L C
V

SILVER SPUR CV

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

EXHIBIT B
Zoning Case
13-Z-025
Highland Trail PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation






IN THE CITY OF LEANDER, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS






Date: March 26, 2014



 
 






 Bar, nightclub or private club;

 Entertainment venues including bowling alleys, golf practice ranges, miniature golf 

establishments, theaters, amusement parks, arcades, arenas, stadiums, 

gymnasiums, skating rinks, commercial sports venues, indoor shooting r ange;

 Sexually oriented businesses;

 Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, repair, body shop;

 Animal hospital, veterinarian, animal boarding including a crematory associated with 

such use on site, or a crematory associated with a cemetery, as long as the 

crematory stack is located at least two hundred feet (200’) from a restaurant, or 

associated parking, or a residential zoning district (unless such district is utilized for 

non-residential uses).  Any commercial enterprise which includes an out door animal 

yard or any other commercial un -soundproofed animal area containing five or more 

animals is required to be at least two hundred feet (200’) from any residential district 

(unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses) and is require d to be 

combined with a Type 3, 4 or 5 site component; 

 (For lots or tracts three or more acres in size) ranches, dairy farms, stables, riding 

academies and roping arenas; including the feeding, raising and breeding of 

agricultural livestock and exotic hoof stock;

 Any uses permitted in the LI (Light Industrial) use component;

 Bingo Parlor;

 Pawn Shop;

 Tattoo and/or Body Piercing Parlor; 

 RV, trailer, commercial motor vehicle and boat outdoor storage;

 Transportation related facilities including commercial parkin g lots, passenger 

terminals, taxi cab stations and mass transit terminals

1. Layout is Conceptual.

2. Business hours shall be no earlier than 8am and no later than 6pm.

    Lighting shall be shielded  to ensure no light spillage on surrounding property.

3. No Parcel shall be used for any of the following  uses, directly or indirectly:

4. No access to the parking lot will be allowed from Highland Trail. Access to the

    parking lot will be allowed only from Osage Drive through a joint driveway from the

    mail kiosk site.

5. Parking will be located behind the structure.

6. The architecture of the building shall be complementary to the single-family

    neighborhood and the structure shall have a pitched roof.

7. The landscaping and the landscape area shall be increased by 50% of the

    current requirement per Type 1 Site Component regulations for a total of

    150% of the requirement.

8. The base zoning district for this PUD shall be LO-1-A. PUD will comply with all

    architectural, landscape and elevation requirements for City of Leander Zoning

    Ordinance LO-1-A.





rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 7













AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 1, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing 304.13 acres of land, 
more or less, located in Williamson County, Texas and including the abutting streets, 
roadways, and rights-of-way; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of 
fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings and 
other related matters. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for March 27, 2014 and April 3, 
2014 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2014.    The first and second public 
hearings were conducted as scheduled.  This is the first reading of the ordinance and the second 
and final reading is scheduled for May 15, 2014. This is an involuntary annexation.  
     
Origination:  City of Leander 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the first reading of the ordinance.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Ordinance 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 4/23/14 



RM 2243

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

Ridgmar Landing Area
304.13 Ac.

County Line
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Proposed Annexation Areas
Ridgmar Landing Area

Ë
0 500 1,000

Feet



 ORDINANCE NO. ______________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ANNEXING 

304.13 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON 
COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCLUDING THE ABUTTING STREETS, 
ROADWAYS, AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN 
FOR THE ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND OTHER RELATED 
MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”), is a home rule municipality 
authorized by State law and the City's Charter to annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to 
the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council, in compliance with §43.021, Tex. Local Gov't Code, 
instituted proceedings for the annexation of certain property more particularly described herein (the 
“subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property hereby annexed is adjacent and contiguous to the present 
City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property, being in excess of 1,000 feet in width, is adjacent to the 
corporate limits of the City and the boundaries of the city limits surround and are contiguous to the 
subject property on all sides, as shown in the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; 
 
 WHEREAS, in compliance with §43.035, Tex. Local Gov't Code, the City extended a 
written offer to enter a development agreement with applicable landowner(s); 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard arguments with respect to such annexation and has 
decided to annex the area;  
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this 
Ordinance in accordance with § 43.063, Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than 
twenty (20) days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City and the territory proposed to be annexed not more than twenty (20) nor less 
than ten (10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the subject property to be annexed 
according to the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 SECTION 2. That the following described property, including the abutting streets, 
roadways and rights-of-way, is hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 

   Ridgmar Landing Area.   All that certain area of land containing 304.13 
acres, more or less, located in Williamson County, Texas, being more 
particularly described and shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 
 SECTION 3.  In the event of conflict between the description of the subject property in this 
Ordinance and the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, Exhibit “A” shall control. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this 
Ordinance, made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
 SECTION 5.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the subject property shall be 
entitled to all of the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B”, and are further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full 
force and effect and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 SECTION 6.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and 
amended, be and hereby are amended so as to include the subject property as part of the City of 
Leander. 
 
 SECTION 7.  That the subject property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as 
provided in the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established 
therefore. 
 
 SECTION 8.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 SECTION 9.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 SECTION 10.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. 
Gov't. Code. 
 
 



 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this ____ day of _________, 2014. 
 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of ___________, 2014. 
     
 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



Exhibit “A” 
 

             Property Description: Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) instituted and completed annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
properties”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties are not included in the municipal annexation plan and 
are exempt from the requirements thereof ; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties will be provided municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within the City limits and capital 
improvements necessary to offer such municipal services on the same terms and conditions as other 
similarly situated properties within the City and in accordance with City policies, regulations, and 
ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject properties into the City.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services shall be provided to the subject properties on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  The subject properties are located within the City’s 
extraterritorial jurisdiction and are more particularly described in the Ordinance to which this 
service plan is attached.  Pursuant to this Plan, the following services shall be provided 
immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and 

the volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 



 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the regulatory jurisdiction of the City shall be extended 

to include the annexed area, and all property therein shall be subject to the City’s police 
power regulations as set forth in duly adopted ordinances; provided that the use of all 
property therein shall be grandfathered to the extent provided by state law.  The subject 
properties shall be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject 
properties upon request of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and 
the City Council will consider rezoning the subject properties at future times in response to 
requests submitted by the landowners or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Depending on the plans for development or 
redevelopment of the subject properties, the following municipal services will be provided on a 
schedule and at increasing levels of service as requested in compliance with applicable City 
ordinances, rules and regulations for providing such services:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the 
utility in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are 
located, in accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the 
costs of line extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service 
to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines 
within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided 



by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied 
to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, 
regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted 
and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance 
policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the 
same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances 
of the City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance, as appropriate, of existing public streets and rights-of-way that are 

within the maintenance jurisdiction of the City and other streets that are hereafter 
constructed and finally accepted by the City within the maintenance jurisdiction of the 
City as follows: 
 

 (i) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 
necessary for traffic flow, etc.;  



 
 (ii)  Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City; 
 
 (iii) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is 
determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
 (iv) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
 (v) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City. 
 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  Water and wastewater facilities that are 
identified in the Capital Improvement Plan, as and when funded pursuant to such Plan.  Upon 
development of the subject properties or redevelopment, the landowners will be responsible for the 
development costs the same as a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect 
at the time of development or redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at 
this time to service the subject properties the same as similarly situated properties.   
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal descriptions of the subject properties are as set forth in 
exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached. 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 1, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas annexing 5.52 acres of land, 
more or less, into the corporate limits of the City, including the abutting roadways and rights-
of-way, at the request of the property owner; approving a service plan for the annexed area; 
making findings of fact; providing a severability clause; and providing an effective date. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for March 27, 2014 and April 3, 
2014 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2014.    The first and second public 
hearings were conducted as scheduled.  This is the first reading of the ordinance and the second 
and final reading is scheduled for May 15, 2014. This is a voluntary annexation.  
     
Origination:  Applicant: SEC Planning, LLC on behalf of Phillip C. Joseph. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the first reading of the ordinance.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Ordinance 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 4/23/14 





 ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ANNEXING 5.52 ACRES OF 

LAND, MORE OR LESS, INTO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY, 
INCLUDING THE ABUTTING ROADWAYS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY, AT THE 
REQUEST OF THE PROPERTY OWNER; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN FOR THE 
ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas, is a home rule municipality authorized by State law to 
annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of the property, as hereinafter described, made written request for the City 
to annex such property in compliance with the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is adjacent and contiguous to the present city limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard and has decided to grant the owner’s request that the City annex 
said property; 
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this Ordinance in 
accordance with §43.063 of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than twenty (20) 
days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published not more than twenty (20) nor less than ten 
(10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the property to be annexed according to the 
Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
SECTION 2.  All portions of the following described property, including the abutting roadways and 
rights-of-way (hereinafter referred to as the “Annexed Property”), not previously annexed into the City, 
are hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 

All portions of that certain tract or parcel of land being 5.52 acres, more or less, located in 
Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in the instrument recorded 
under Document Number 2013103652, Official Public Records of Williamson County, 
Texas and being more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein for all purposes.   



 
 
SECTION 3.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this Ordinance, 
made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
SECTION 4.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the Annexed Property shall be entitled to all of 
the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and are 
further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full force and effect and all those 
which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
SECTION 5.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and amended be and 
hereby are amended so as to include the Annexed Property as part of the City of Leander. 
 
SECTION 6.  That the Annexed Property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as provided in 
the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established therefore. 
 
SECTION 7.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
SECTION 8.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
SECTION 9.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
 
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
     
 

ATTEST:      CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



 
Exhibit “A” 

 
Property Description: +/- 5.52 acre tract 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation proceedings 
for a tract of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is exempt 
from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 



provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the landowner(s) 
or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the plans 
and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will be 
provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water service, 

water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, by the 
utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject properties, 
or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of such 
facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties and any off-site 
improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, 
conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the 
City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  
The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance 
and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request 
under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs 
and request for service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and 
such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the 
City’s water utility system. 



 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of wastewater 

service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions thereof as 
applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, 
or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If 
connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the 
internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of facilities 
necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  
Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site 
improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the same 
terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of 
the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to 
time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its 
usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject property owner requests and is able to connect to 
the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property and 
other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The maintenance of 
the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and following 
installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city ordinance, 
including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic control devices 
and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public streets, roadways and 
rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 



  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 
construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore 
is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be initiated 
after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in a 
similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  No 
additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same as 
similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the Annexation 
Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.  

 



AGENDA ITEM # 19 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 1, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing 594 acres of land, 
more or less, located in Travis and Williamson counties, and including the abutting streets, 
roadways, and rights-of-way; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of 
fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings and 
other related matters. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for March 27, 2014 and April 3, 
2014 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2014.    The first and second public 
hearings were conducted as scheduled.  This is the first reading of the ordinance and the second 
and final reading is scheduled for May 15, 2014. This is an involuntary annexation. 
 
Staff has negotiated annexation development agreements with three property owners within this 
annexation area pursuant to Chapter 43.035 of the Local Government Code.  Upon approval of 
those agreements, the second reading of the ordinance will be updated to remove those parcels 
from the annexation area.  
     
Origination:  City of Leander 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the first reading of the ordinance.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Ordinance 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 4/23/14 



OLD 2243 WEST

RM 2243

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N BAGDAD RD

CR 279
S BAGDAD RD

N Lakeline Blvd Area
594 Ac.

County Line
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Proposed Annexation Areas
N Lakeline Blvd Area

Ë
0 5001,000

Feet



 ORDINANCE NO. ______________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ANNEXING 594 

ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, LOCATED IN TRAVIS AND 
WILLIAMSON COUNTIES, AND INCLUDING THE ABUTTING 
STREETS, ROADWAYS, AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY; APPROVING A 
SERVICE PLAN FOR THE ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF 
FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND OTHER 
RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”), is a home rule municipality 
authorized by State law and the City's Charter to annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to 
the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council, in compliance with §43.021, Tex. Local Gov't Code, 
instituted proceedings for the annexation of certain property more particularly described herein (the 
“subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property hereby annexed is adjacent and contiguous to the present 
City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property, being in excess of 1,000 feet in width, is adjacent to the 
corporate limits of the City and the boundaries of the city limits are contiguous to the subject 
property on at least two sides, as shown in the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; 
 
 WHEREAS, in compliance with §43.035, Tex. Local Gov't Code, the City extended a 
written offer to enter a development agreement with applicable landowner(s); 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard arguments with respect to such annexation and has 
decided to annex the area;  
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this 
Ordinance in accordance with § 43.063, Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than 
twenty (20) days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City and the territory proposed to be annexed not more than twenty (20) nor less 
than ten (10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the subject property to be annexed 
according to the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 SECTION 2. That the following described property, including the abutting streets, 
roadways and rights-of-way, is hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 

   North Lakeline Boulevard Area.   All that certain area of land containing 594 
acres, more or less, located in both Travis County, Texas and Williamson 
County, Texas, being more particularly described and shown in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto. 

 
 SECTION 3.  In the event of conflict between the description of the subject property in this 
Ordinance and the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, Exhibit “A” shall control. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this 
Ordinance, made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
 SECTION 5.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the subject property shall be 
entitled to all of the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B”, and are further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full 
force and effect and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 SECTION 6.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and 
amended, be and hereby are amended so as to include the subject property as part of the City of 
Leander. 
 
 SECTION 7.  That the subject property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as 
provided in the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established 
therefore. 
 
 SECTION 8.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 SECTION 9.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 SECTION 10.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. 
Gov't. Code. 
 



 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this ____ day of _________, 2014. 
 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of ___________, 2014. 
     
 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



Exhibit “A” 
 

             Property Description: Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) instituted and completed annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
properties”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties are not included in the municipal annexation plan and 
are exempt from the requirements thereof ; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties will be provided municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within the City limits and capital 
improvements necessary to offer such municipal services on the same terms and conditions as other 
similarly situated properties within the City and in accordance with City policies, regulations, and 
ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject properties into the City.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services shall be provided to the subject properties on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  The subject properties are located within the City’s 
extraterritorial jurisdiction and are more particularly described in the Ordinance to which this 
service plan is attached.  Pursuant to this Plan, the following services shall be provided 
immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and 

the volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 



 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the regulatory jurisdiction of the City shall be extended 

to include the annexed area, and all property therein shall be subject to the City’s police 
power regulations as set forth in duly adopted ordinances; provided that the use of all 
property therein shall be grandfathered to the extent provided by state law.  The subject 
properties shall be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject 
properties upon request of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and 
the City Council will consider rezoning the subject properties at future times in response to 
requests submitted by the landowners or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Depending on the plans for development or 
redevelopment of the subject properties, the following municipal services will be provided on a 
schedule and at increasing levels of service as requested in compliance with applicable City 
ordinances, rules and regulations for providing such services:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the 
utility in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are 
located, in accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the 
costs of line extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service 
to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines 
within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided 



by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied 
to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, 
regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted 
and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance 
policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the 
same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances 
of the City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance, as appropriate, of existing public streets and rights-of-way that are 

within the maintenance jurisdiction of the City and other streets that are hereafter 
constructed and finally accepted by the City within the maintenance jurisdiction of the 
City as follows: 
 

 (i) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 
necessary for traffic flow, etc.;  



 
 (ii)  Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City; 
 
 (iii) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is 
determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
 (iv) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
 (v) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City. 
 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  Water and wastewater facilities that are 
identified in the Capital Improvement Plan, as and when funded pursuant to such Plan.  Upon 
development of the subject properties or redevelopment, the landowners will be responsible for the 
development costs the same as a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect 
at the time of development or redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at 
this time to service the subject properties the same as similarly situated properties.   
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal descriptions of the subject properties are as set forth in 
exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached. 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 20 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 1, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Consider approval of an annexation Development Agreement pursuant to 
Chapter 43.035 of the Local Government Code between the City of Leander and Larry T. 
Gilbreath for two parcels of land identified by Williamson Central Appraisal District as 
R366161 and R032167. 
  
Background:  The two parcels subject to the development agreement are within the Lakeline 
involuntary annexation area and both have agricultural exemptions.  Pursuant to the State 
annexation statute, a municipality is required to offer a development agreement in lieu of 
annexation for involuntary annexations where the property proposed for annexation is appraised 
for ad valorem tax purposes as agricultural, wildlife management or timber land. 
 
The agreement provides for the areas to remain in the ETJ but subject to all municipal 
regulations that do not interfere with the use of the land as an agricultural property.  The term of 
the agreement is five years. 
 
The property will automatically be annexed if the use of the property changes or at the end of the 
term of the agreement. 
     
Origination:  City of Leander 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the development agreement.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Chapter 43.035 Development Agreement with Larry T. Gilbreath 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 4/23/14 



STATE OF TEXAS         § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  §      
  

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
UNDER SECTION 43.035, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 

  
This Development Agreement under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code is entered 
between the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) and the undersigned property owner(s) (the 
“Owner”) (the “Agreement”).  The term Owner shall include all owners of the Property.  The 
City and the Owner are collectively referred to as the Parties. 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner owns a parcel of real property in Travis County, Texas, which is more 
particularly described in the attached Exhibit “A” (the “Property”) that is appraised for ad 
valorem tax purposes as land for agricultural, wildlife management, or timber land under Chapter 
23, Tax Code; 
 
WHEREAS, the City initiated the process to annex all or portions of Owner’s Property; 
  
WHEREAS, under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code, the City is required to offer 
to make a development agreement with the Owner that will provide for the continuation of the 
extraterritorial status of the area and authorize the enforcement of all regulations and planning 
authority of the City that do not interfere with the use of the area for agriculture, wildlife 
management, or timber; 
 
WHEREAS, Section 43.035 provides that the restriction or limitation on the City’s annexation 
of all or part of the Property under this Agreement is void if the Owner files any type of 
subdivision plat or related development document for the Property, regardless of how the area is 
appraised for ad valorem tax purposes; 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner desires to have the Property remain in the City’s extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, in consideration for which the Owner agrees to enter into this Agreement; and 
   
WHEREAS, this Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 43.035 and 212.172, Texas 
Local Government Code; 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 
Parties hereto agree as follows:  
 
Section 1.  Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Status of Property.  The City agrees that the Property 
shall remain in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction (the “ETJ”) and the City shall discontinue 
the pending annexation proceedings as to the Property.  The City further agrees that it shall not 
annex the Property during the term of this Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  
 
Section  2.  Owner’s Obligations.  In consideration of the City’s agreement not to annex the 
Property and as a condition of the Property remaining in the City’s ETJ, the Owner covenants 



and agrees to the following: 
 

(a) The Owner shall use the Property only for agriculture, wildlife management, 
and/or timber land use, as defined by Chapter 23 of the Texas Tax Code, that are 
existing on the Effective Date of this Agreement, except for single-family 
residential use existing on the Effective Date or as otherwise provided by this 
Agreement.   

 
(b) The Owner shall not subdivide the Property, or file for approval of a subdivision 

plat, site plan, or related development document for the Property with Williamson 
County or the City until the Property is annexed into and zoned by the City.  

 
(c) The Owner shall not construct, or allow to be constructed, any building or 

structure on the Property that requires a building permit until the Property is 
annexed into and zoned by the City.  Accessory structures authorized under the 
Single-Family Rural (District “SFR-1-B”) (including but not limited to barns, 
sheds, fences, and corrals) and buildings or structures that are related to and 
necessary for the use of the Property as authorized under Section 2(a) (excluding 
new single family residences) are exceptions to this Section 2(c), provided that 
the Owner obtains required building permits prior to construction.    

 
(d) The City’s Single-Family Rural (District “SFR-1-B”) zoning regulations shall 

apply to the Property, and in addition to the uses authorized under District “SFR-
1-B”, the Property may also be used for wildlife management or timber land, as 
defined by Chapter 23 of the Texas Tax Code, if such uses existed on the 
Effective Date of this Agreement.  Fences shall not be subject to setback 
requirements.  The City’s building codes and regulations shall apply to the 
Property except as provided otherwise in this Section 2(d).  Any buildings or 
structures constructed on the Property after the Effective Date shall be constructed 
in compliance with the regulations for the Single-Family Rural (District “SFR-1-
B”) and applicable building codes and regulations, provided that building permits 
and related inspections shall only be required for the construction of a new single 
family residence and additions to an existing single family residence that are 
authorized to be located on the Property under this Agreement. 

 
Section  3. Development and Annexation of Property.   
 

(a) The following occurrences shall be deemed the Owner’s petition for voluntary 
annexation of the Property, and the Property may subsequently be annexed at the 
discretion of the City Council: 

  
(1) The filing of any application for plat approval, site plan approval, building 

permit or related development document for the Property, or the 
commencement of development of the Property, except as specifically 
authorized herein.   

 



(2) The Owner’s failure to comply with Sections 2(a), 2(b), or 2(c). 
 

(3) The Property is no longer appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for 
agricultural, wildlife management, or timber land under Chapter 23, Texas Tax 
Code, or successor statute, unless the Property is no longer appraised for such 
purposes because the Legislature has abolished agricultural, wildlife 
management, or timberland exemptions, provided that the Owner is in 
compliance with Section 2. 

 
(4) The filing for voluntary annexation of the Property into the City by the Owner. 

 
(5) The expiration of this Agreement. 

 
(b) The Owner agrees that annexation initiated due to an occurrence under Section 3(a) 

shall be voluntary and the Owner hereby consents to such annexation as though a 
petition for such annexation had been tendered by the Owner.  Upon annexation, 
municipal services shall be provided to the Property in accordance with the adopted 
municipal services plan. 

 
Section  4.  Application of City Regulations.  Pursuant to Section 43.035(b)(1)(B), Texas Local 
Government Code, the Property is subject to all of the City’s regulations, as they are amended 
from time to time, and planning authority that do not materially interfere with the use of the 
Property for agriculture, wildlife management, or timber, in the same manner the regulations are 
enforced within the City’s boundaries and the Owner acknowledges and agrees that the City is 
hereby authorized to enforce said regulations and planning authority except as specifically 
provided otherwise herein.   
 
Section  5.  Term.  The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) is five (5) years from the Effective 
Date.   
 
Section 6.  Vested Rights Claims.  This Agreement is not a permit for the purposes of Chapter 
245, Texas Local Government Code.  The Owner hereby waives any and all vested rights and 
claims that the Owner may have under Section 43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local 
Government Code that would otherwise exist by virtue of any actions Owner takes or has taken 
in violation of Section 2 herein.  The Owner further waives any and all vested rights and claims 
that the Owner may have under Section 43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local 
Government Code that would otherwise exist by virtue of any application, plan, plat or 
construction the Owner may file or initiate with respect to the Property following the expiration 
of this Agreement prior to annexation of the Property by the City; provided that the City initiates 
annexation proceedings within one year following the expiration of this Agreement.  
 
Section 7.  Authorization.   
 

(a) All parties and officers signing this Agreement warrant to be duly authorized to execute 
this Agreement. 

 



(b) The Owner acknowledges that each and every owner of the Property must sign this 
Agreement in order for the Agreement to take full effect.  The failure of each and every 
owner of the Property to sign this Agreement at the time of approval and execution by 
the City shall result in the Agreement being void, and the City may, within its discretion, 
annex the Property in accordance with applicable law.  

 
Section  8.  Notice.  Any person who sells or conveys any portion of the Property shall, prior to 
such sale or conveyance, give written notice of this Agreement to the prospective purchaser or 
grantee, and shall give written notice of the sale or conveyance to the City.  Furthermore, the 
Owner and the Owner’s heirs, successor, and assigns shall give the City written notice within 14 
days of any change in the agricultural exemption status of the Property.  A copy of the notices 
required by this Section shall be sent by personal delivery or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the City at the following address:  
 
    City of Leander 
    Attn:  City Manager  
    200 W. Willis Street  
    Leander, Texas 78646 
  
Notices required to be sent to the Owner shall be sent by personal delivery or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to the Owner at the following address: 
 
Larry T. Gilbreath 
13303 Old 2243 West 
Leander, TX 78641 
 
Section  9.  Covenant Running with the Land.  This Agreement shall run with the Property, 
and a memorandum of this Agreement in a form substantially similar to that set forth in Exhibit 
“B” shall be recorded in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas.  The Owner 
and the City acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is binding upon the City and the Owner 
and their respective successors, executors, heirs, and assigns, as applicable, for the term of this 
Agreement.  Conveyance of the Property, or portions thereof, to subsequent owners does not 
trigger a request for voluntary annexation unless Section 2 is also violated. 

 
Section  10.  Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
and final jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, then the remainder of the 
Agreement shall be deemed to be valid and enforceable as if the invalid portion had not been 
included. 
 
Section 11.  Amendment and Modifications.  This Agreement may be amended or modified 
only in a written instrument that is executed by both the City and the Owner after it has been 
authorized by the City Council. 
 
Section 12.  Gender, Number and Headings.  Words of any gender used in this Agreement 
shall be held and construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall 
be held to include the plural, unless the context otherwise requires.  The headings and section 



numbers are for convenience only and shall not be considered in interpreting or construing this 
Agreement. 
 
Section 13.  Governmental Immunity; Defenses.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to waive, modify, or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to either the City or 
Owner, including governmental immunity, nor to create any legal rights or claims on behalf of 
any third party.  
 
Section 14.  Enforcement; Waiver.  This Agreement may be enforced by any Owner or the City 
by any proceeding at law or in equity.  Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver to enforce 
the provisions of this Agreement thereafter.    
 
Section 15.  Effect of Future Laws.  No subsequent change in the law regarding annexation 
shall affect the enforceability of this Agreement or the City’s ability to annex the properties 
covered herein pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.    
 
Section 16.  Venue and Applicable Law.  Venue for this Agreement shall be in Williamson 
County, Texas.  This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas. 
 
Section 17.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be separately executed in individual 
counterparts and, upon execution, shall constitute one and same instrument. 
 
Section 18.  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of the date of 
approval of this Agreement by the City Council, from and after its execution by the Parties.   
 
Section  19.  Sections to Survive Termination.  This Agreement shall survive its termination to 
the extent necessary for the implementation of the provisions related to annexation of the 
Property into the City.  
  
Entered into this ____ day of _________________, 2014.  
  
 
 
Owner (s) 
  
  
__________________________________________  
Printed Name: Larry T. Gilbreath  
  
 
 
 
 
  
 



City of Leander, Texas 
  
 
__________________________________________  
Chris Fielder, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS       § 
COUNTY OF ______________ § 
 

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared Larry T. 
Gilbreath, Owner of the Property, and acknowledged that s/he is fully authorized to execute the 
foregoing document and that s/he executed such document for the purposes and consideration 
therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
          GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the ______ day of    
______________, 2014. 
                             

_______________________________ 
Notary Public  - State of Texas 

 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared Chris Fielder, 
Mayor, City of Leander, Texas and acknowledged that he is fully authorized to execute the 
foregoing document and that he executed such document for the purposes and consideration 
therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
          GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the ______ day of    
______________, 2014. 
                             

_______________________________ 
Notary Public  - State of Texas 



EXHIBIT “A” 
Description of the Property 

 
 

Parcel 1 - AW0292 HORNSBY, M. SUR., ACRES 11.24, WCAD Parcel ID R032167 
 
Parcel 2 - AW0292 HORNSBY, M. SUR., ACRES 1.48, WCAD Parcel ID R366161 
 



 
Exhibit “B” 

 
MEMORANDUM OF RECORD 

NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
 

 
STATE OF TEXAS    §   
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
Whereas, the undersigned (“Owner”) and the City of Leander (the “City”), entered into that certain 
Development Agreement under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code dated _______________, 
20_____, (the “Agreement”); 
 
Whereas, Owner and the City entered the Agreement pursuant to Local Government Code §43.035 which, 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, effectively guarantees the continuation of the 
extraterritorial status of Owner’s property that is currently appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as agricultural 
land under Subchapter C or D, Chapter 23 of the Tax Code until the Agreement expires or the property is 
developed for purposes other than agriculture; 
 
Whereas, Owner is the owner of record for the property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes (the “Property”); 
 
Whereas, recording the entire Agreement in the real property records of Williamson County is impractical and 
needlessly burdensome; and 
 
Whereas, the Owner and City agree to file this Memorandum of Record (“Memorandum”) to provide notice of 
the Agreement encumbering the Property; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned hereby executes this Memorandum and files the same of record in the 
Deed Records of Williamson County, Texas, for the purpose of giving notice to all persons that: 
 
(1)  The Agreement is on file with the City Secretary at the Leander City Hall, copies of which are available 
upon request.  
 
(2)  The Owner is required to perform as agreed and provided in the Agreement, as well as in accordance with 
all other applicable rules, regulations and codes of the City, except as provided otherwise in the Agreement. 
 
(3)  The Agreement provides that any person who sells or conveys any portion of the Property shall, prior to 
such sale or conveyance, give written notice of this Agreement to the prospective purchaser or grantee, and 
shall give written notice of the sale or conveyance to the City.  Furthermore, the Owner and the Owner’s heirs, 
successor, and assigns shall give the City written notice within 14 days of any change in the agricultural 
exemption status of the Property 

 
 



 
Executed and filed this the _____ day of ____________, 2014. 

        
   By:______________________ 
   Name: Kent Cagle  

Title:  City Manager          
             

       
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
  BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this day 
personally appeared Kent Cagle, City Manager of the City of Leander, known to me to be the person whose name 
is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
 GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the  ___                  day of                                  
2014. 
 
                
  (SEAL)   __________________________________________ 

                 Notary Public-State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
After Recording Return to: 
City of Leander 
Attn:  City Secretary 
P.O. Box 319 
Leander, Texas 78646-0319 



AGENDA ITEM # 21 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 1, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Consider approval of an annexation Development Agreement pursuant to 
Chapter 43.035 of the Local Government Code between the City of Leander and Linda Hall, an 
individual, and Linda Hall, as trustee of the Linda Heierman Trust for three parcels of land 
identified by Travis Central Appraisal District as property IDs 353692, 353622, and 382587. 
  
Background:  The three parcels subject to the development agreement are within the Lakeline 
involuntary annexation area and have agricultural exemptions.  Pursuant to the State annexation 
statute, a municipality is required to offer a development agreement in lieu of annexation for 
involuntary annexations where the property proposed for annexation is appraised for ad valorem 
tax purposes as agricultural, wildlife management or timber land. 
 
The agreement provides for the areas to remain in the ETJ but subject to all municipal 
regulations that do not interfere with the use of the land as an agricultural property.  The term of 
the agreement is five years with an option to renew for an additional five years. 
 
The property will automatically be annexed if the use of the property changes or at the end of the 
term of the agreement. 
     
Origination:  City of Leander 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the development agreement.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Chapter 43.035 Development Agreement with Linda Hall 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 4/23/14 



Page 1 of 8 
Development Agreement: Leander-Hall  

STATE OF TEXAS         § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  §      
  

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
UNDER SECTION 43.035, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 

  
This Development Agreement under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code is entered 
between the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”); and Linda Hall, an individual, and Linda Hall, 
as trustee of the Linda Heierman Trust (collectively the “Owner”) (the “Agreement”).  The term 
Owner shall include all owners of the Property.  The City and the Owner are collectively referred 
to as the Parties. 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner owns a parcel of real property in Williamson County, Texas, which is 
more particularly described in the attached Exhibit “A” (the “Property”) that is appraised for ad 
valorem tax purposes as land for agricultural, wildlife management, or timber land under Chapter 
23, Tax Code; 
 
WHEREAS, the City has begun the process to annex all or portions of Owner’s Property; 
  
WHEREAS, under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code, the City is required to offer 
to make a development agreement with the Owner that will provide for the continuation of the 
extraterritorial status of the area and authorize the enforcement of all regulations and planning 
authority of the City that do not interfere with the use of the area for agriculture, wildlife 
management, or timber; 
 
WHEREAS, Section 43.035 provides that the restriction or limitation on the City’s annexation 
of all or part of the Property under this Agreement is void if the Owner files any type of 
subdivision plat or related development document for the Property, regardless of how the area is 
appraised for ad valorem tax purposes; 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner desires to have the Property remain in the City’s extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, in consideration for which the Owner agrees to enter into this Agreement; and 
   
WHEREAS, this Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 43.035 and 212.172, Texas 
Local Government Code; 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 
Parties hereto agree as follows:  
 
Section 1.  Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Status of Property.  The City agrees that the Property 
shall remain in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction (the “ETJ”) and the City shall discontinue 
the pending annexation proceedings as to the Property.  The City further agrees that it shall not 
annex the Property during the term of this Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  
 
Section  2.  Owner’s Obligations.  In consideration of the City’s agreement not to annex the 



Page 2 of 8 
Development Agreement: Leander-Hall  

Property and as a condition of the Property remaining in the City’s ETJ, the Owner covenants 
and agrees to the following: 
 

(a) The Owner shall use the Property only for agriculture, wildlife management, 
and/or timber land uses, as defined by Chapter 23 of the Texas Tax Code that are 
existing on the Effective Date of this Agreement, except for single-family 
residential use existing on the Effective Date or as otherwise provided by this 
Agreement.   

 
(b) The Owner shall not file for approval of a subdivision plat, site plan, or related 

development document for the Property with Williamson County or the City until 
the Property is annexed into and zoned by the City.  The Owner shall be allowed 
to have informal discussions and negotiations with Williamson County or the City 
regarding proposed concept plans, subdivision plats, site plans, or related 
development documents for the Property. 

 
(c) The Owner shall not construct, or allow to be constructed, any building or 

structure on the Property that requires a building permit until the Property is 
annexed into and zoned by the City.  Accessory structures authorized under the 
Single-Family Rural (District “SFR-1-B”) (including but not limited to barns, 
sheds, fences, and corrals) and buildings or structures that are related to and 
necessary for the use of the Property as authorized under Section 2(a) (excluding 
new single family residences), and the repair, addition, or demolition of any 
building or structure existing on the Effective Date are exceptions to this Section 
2(c), provided that the Owner obtains required building permits prior to 
construction.    

 
(d) The City’s Single-Family Rural (District “SFR-1-B”) zoning regulations shall 

apply to the Property, and in addition to the uses authorized under District “SFR-
1-B”, the Property may also be used for agricultural, wildlife management or 
timber land, as defined by Chapter 23 of the Texas Tax Code, if such uses existed 
on the Effective Date of this Agreement.  Fences shall not be subject to setback 
requirements.  The City’s building codes and regulations shall apply to the 
Property except as provided otherwise in this Section 2(d).  Any buildings or 
structures constructed on the Property after the Effective Date shall be constructed 
in compliance with the regulations for the Single-Family Rural (District “SFR-1-
B”) and applicable building codes and regulations, provided that building permits 
and related inspections shall only be required for the construction of a new single 
family residence and additions to an existing single family residence that are 
authorized to be located on the Property under this Agreement. 

 
Section  3. Development and Annexation of Property.   
 

(a) The following occurrences shall be deemed the Owner’s petition for voluntary 
annexation of the Property, and the Property may subsequently be annexed at the 
discretion of the City Council: 



Page 3 of 8 
Development Agreement: Leander-Hall  

  
(1) The filing of any application for plat approval, site plan approval, building 

permits (except a building permit required for construction of improvements 
allowed under Section 2 of this Agreement),or related development document 
for the Property, or the commencement of development of the Property 
(collectively “Development Permit”), except as specifically authorized herein.  
The Parties agree that: i) Owner’s informal discussions and negotiations 
regarding possible Development Permits are not to be considered a 
Development Permit: and ii) for purposes of this Agreement the term “informal 
discussions and negotiations” does not include a formal application for a 
Development Permit. 

 
(2) The Owner’s failure to comply with Sections 2(a), 2(b), or 2(c). 

 
(3) The Property is no longer appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for 

agricultural, wildlife management, or timber land under Chapter 23, Texas Tax 
Code (as determined by a court of final jurisdiction), or successor statute, unless 
the Property is no longer appraised for such purposes because the Legislature 
has abolished agricultural, wildlife management, or timberland exemptions, 
provided that the Owner is in compliance with Section 2. 

 
(4) The filing for voluntary annexation of the Property into the City by the Owner. 

 
(5) The expiration of this Agreement. 

 
(b) The Owner agrees that annexation initiated due to an occurrence under Section 3(a) 

shall be voluntary and the Owner hereby consents to such annexation as though a 
petition for such annexation had been tendered by the Owner.  Upon annexation, 
municipal services shall be provided to the Property in accordance with the adopted 
municipal services plan. 

 
Section  4.  Application of City Regulations.  Pursuant to Section 43.035(b)(1)(B), Texas Local 
Government Code, the Property is subject to all of the City’s regulations, as they are amended 
from time to time, and planning authority that do not materially interfere with the use of the 
Property for agriculture, wildlife management, or timber, in the same manner the regulations are 
enforced within the City’s boundaries and the Owner acknowledges and agrees that the City is 
hereby authorized to enforce said regulations and planning authority except as specifically 
provided otherwise herein; provided that fees that are applicable to properties located within the 
ETJ shall apply to the Property.    
 
Section  5.  Term.  The term of this Agreement is five (5) years from the Effective Date (the 
“Initial Term”).  The Owner shall have the option to renew this Agreement for an additional five 
(5) years by providing the City with written notice of Owner’s intention to exercise the renewal 
option during the 90-days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. 
 
Section 6.  Vested Rights Claims.  This Agreement is not a permit for the purposes of Chapter 



Page 4 of 8 
Development Agreement: Leander-Hall  

245, Texas Local Government Code.  The Owner hereby waives any and all vested rights and 
claims that the Owner may have under Section 43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, but only those vested right and claims that would otherwise exist by virtue of 
any actions Owner takes after the Effective Date of this Agreement in violation of Section 2 
herein.  The Owner further waives any and all vested rights and claims that the Owner may have 
under Section 43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government Code that would 
otherwise exist by virtue of any plat or construction the Owner may initiate following the 
expiration of this Agreement and the institution of annexation proceedings by the City; provided 
that the City initiates annexation proceedings within one year following the expiration of this 
Agreement.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Owner does not waive any vested 
rights or claims that Owner may have in the Property under Section 43.002(a)(2) and/or Chapter 
245 of the Texas Local Government Code, as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 
 
Section 7.  Authorization.   
 

(a) All parties and officers signing this Agreement warrant to be duly authorized to execute 
this Agreement. 

 
(b) The Owner acknowledges that each and every owner of the Property must sign this 

Agreement in order for the Agreement to take full effect.  The failure of each and every 
owner of the Property to sign this Agreement at the time of approval and execution by 
the City shall result in the Agreement being void, and the City may, within its discretion, 
annex the Property in accordance with applicable law.  

 
Section  8.  Notice.  Any person who sells or conveys any portion of the Property shall, prior to 
such sale or conveyance, give written notice of this Agreement to the prospective purchaser or 
grantee.  Furthermore, the Owner and the Owner’s heirs, successor, and assigns shall give the 
City written notice within 14 days of any change in the agricultural exemption status of the 
Property.  A copy of the notices required by this Section shall be sent by personal delivery or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the City at the following address:  
 
    City of Leander 
    Attn:  City Manager  
    200 W. Willis Street  
    Leander, Texas 78646 
  
Notices required to be sent to the Owner shall be sent by personal delivery or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to the Owner at all of the following addresses: 
 
Linda Hall 
2501 Old Quarry Road 
Leander, Texas 78641 
 
 
Linda Hall, Trustee 
Linda Heierman Trust 



Page 5 of 8 
Development Agreement: Leander-Hall  

2501 Old Quarry Road 
Leander, Texas 78641 
 
With a copy to Owner’s attorney at: 
 
Jim Bellevue 
Law Office of James Bellevue 
6705 W. HWY 290 
Suite 502-295 
Austin, Texas 78735 
 
Section  9.  Covenant Running with the Land.  This Agreement shall run with the Property, 
and a memorandum of this Agreement acceptable to City and the Owner shall be recorded in the 
Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas.  The Owner and the City acknowledge 
and agree that this Agreement is binding upon the City and the Owner and their respective 
successors, executors, heirs, and assigns, as applicable, for the term of this Agreement.  
Conveyance of the Property, or portions thereof, to subsequent owners does not trigger a request 
for voluntary annexation unless Section 2 is also violated. 

 
Section  10.  Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
and final jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, then the remainder of the 
Agreement shall be deemed to be valid and enforceable as if the invalid portion had not been 
included. 
 
Section 11.  Amendment and Modifications.  This Agreement may be amended or modified 
only in a written instrument that is executed by both the City and the Owner after it has been 
authorized by the City Council. 
 
Section 12.  Gender, Number and Headings.  Words of any gender used in this Agreement 
shall be held and construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall 
be held to include the plural, unless the context otherwise requires.  The headings and section 
numbers are for convenience only and shall not be considered in interpreting or construing this 
Agreement. 
 
Section 13.  Governmental Immunity; Defenses.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to waive, modify, or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to either the City or 
Owner, including governmental immunity, nor to create any legal rights or claims on behalf of 
any third party.  
 
Section 14.  Enforcement; Waiver.  This Agreement may be enforced by any Owner or the City 
by any proceeding at law or in equity.  Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver to enforce 
the provisions of this Agreement thereafter.    
 
Section 15.  Effect of Future Laws.  No subsequent change in the law regarding annexation 
shall affect the enforceability of this Agreement or the City’s ability to annex the properties 
covered herein pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.    



Page 6 of 8 
Development Agreement: Leander-Hall  

 
Section 16.  Venue and Applicable Law.  Venue for this Agreement shall be in Williamson 
County, Texas.  This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas. 
 
Section 17.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be separately executed in individual 
counterparts and, upon execution, shall constitute one and same instrument. 
 
Section 18.  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of the date of 
approval of this Agreement by the City Council, from and after its execution by the Parties.   
 
Section  19.  Sections to Survive Termination.  This Agreement shall survive its termination to 
the extent necessary for the implementation of the provisions related to annexation of the 
Property into the City.  
  
Entered into this ____ day of _________________, 2014.  
  
 
 
Owner (s) 
  
  
__________________________________________  
Printed Name: Linda Hall 
  
  
__________________________________________  
Printed Name: Linda Hall, Trustee 
Linda Heierman Trust 
  
City of Leander, Texas 
  
 
__________________________________________  
_________, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 8 
Development Agreement: Leander-Hall  

STATE OF TEXAS       § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
 

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared Linda Hall, and 
individual, one of the Owners of the Property, and acknowledged that she is fully authorized to 
execute the foregoing document and that she executed such document for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
          GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the ______ day of    
______________, 2014 . 
                             

_______________________________ 
Notary Public  - State of Texas 

 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
 

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared Linda Hall, 
Trustee of the Linda Heierman Trust, one of the Owners of the Property, and acknowledged that 
she is fully authorized to execute the foregoing document and that she executed such document 
for the purposes and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
          GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the ______ day of    
______________, 2014. 
                             

_______________________________ 
Notary Public  - State of Texas 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
 

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared ______, 
Mayor, City of Leander, and acknowledged that he is fully authorized to execute the foregoing 
document and that he executed such document for the purposes and consideration therein 
expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
          GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the ______ day of    
______________, 2014. 
                             

_______________________________ 
Notary Public  - State of Texas 



Page 8 of 8 
Development Agreement: Leander-Hall  

EXHIBIT “A” 
Description of the Property 

 
TRACT ONE: 
146.625 acres; ABS 381 SUR 704 Heartt Chas Survey; Travis CAD Account No. 353622 
 
TRACT TWO: 
5.075 acres; ABS 381 SUR 704, Heartt Chas Survey; Travs CAD Account No. 382587 
 
TRACT THREE: 
83.391 acres; Lot 54, Apple Springs subdivision; Travis CAD Account No. 353692 
 













AGENDA ITEM # 22 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 1, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Consider approval of an annexation Development Agreement pursuant to 
Chapter 43.035 of the Local Government Code between the City of Leander and Mr. and Mrs. 
John Gilpin, for nine parcels of land identified by Travis Central Appraisal District as property 
IDs 353973, 353974, and 382596 and Williamson Central Appraisal District as property IDs 
R514061, R519115, R383674, R032162, R514060 and R032165. 
  
Background:  The nine parcels subject to the development agreement are within the Lakeline 
involuntary annexation area and have agricultural exemptions.  Pursuant to the State annexation 
statute, a municipality is required to offer a development agreement in lieu of annexation for 
involuntary annexations where the property proposed for annexation is appraised for ad valorem 
tax purposes as agricultural, wildlife management or timber land. 
 
The agreement provides for the areas to remain in the ETJ but subject to all municipal 
regulations that do not interfere with the use of the land as an agricultural property.  The term of 
the agreement is eight years. 
 
The agreement also provides for the City to work with the property owner on a development 
agreement for future development of the property upon annexation. 
 
The property will automatically be annexed if the use of the property changes or at the end of the 
term of the agreement. 
     
Origination:  City of Leander 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the development agreement.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Chapter 43.035 Development Agreement with Mr. and Mrs. John Gilpin 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 4/23/14 



STATE OF TEXAS         § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  §      
  

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
UNDER SECTION 43.035, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 

  
This Development Agreement under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code is entered 
between the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) and the undersigned property owner(s) (the 
“Owner”) (the “Agreement”).  The term Owner shall include all owners of the Property.  The 
City and the Owner are collectively referred to as the Parties. 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner owns a parcel of real property in Travis County, Texas, which is more 
particularly described in the attached Exhibit “A” (the “Property”) that is appraised for ad 
valorem tax purposes as land for agricultural, wildlife management, or timber land under Chapter 
23, Tax Code; 
 
WHEREAS, the City initiated the process to annex all or portions of Owner’s Property; 
  
WHEREAS, under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code, the City is required to offer 
to make a development agreement with the Owner that will provide for the continuation of the 
extraterritorial status of the area and authorize the enforcement of all regulations and planning 
authority of the City that do not interfere with the use of the area for agriculture, wildlife 
management, or timber; 
 
WHEREAS, Section 43.035 provides that the restriction or limitation on the City’s annexation 
of all or part of the Property under this Agreement is void if the Owner files any type of 
subdivision plat or related development document for the Property, regardless of how the area is 
appraised for ad valorem tax purposes; 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner desires to have the Property remain in the City’s extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, in consideration for which the Owner agrees to enter into this Agreement; and 
   
WHEREAS, this Agreement is entered into pursuant to Sections 43.035 and 212.172, Texas 
Local Government Code; 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 
Parties hereto agree as follows:  
 
Section 1.  Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Status of Property.  The City agrees that the Property 
shall remain in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction (the “ETJ”) and the City shall discontinue 
the pending annexation proceedings as to the Property.  The City further agrees that it shall not 
annex the Property during the term of this Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  
 
Section  2.  Owner’s Obligations.  In consideration of the City’s agreement not to annex the 
Property and as a condition of the Property remaining in the City’s ETJ, the Owner covenants 



and agrees to the following: 
 

(a) The Owner shall use the Property only for agriculture, wildlife management, 
and/or timber land use, as defined by Chapter 23 of the Texas Tax Code, that are 
existing on the Effective Date of this Agreement, except for single-family 
residential use existing on the Effective Date or as otherwise provided by this 
Agreement.   

 
(b) The Owner shall not subdivide the Property, or file for approval of a subdivision 

plat, site plan, or related development document for the Property with Williamson 
County or the City until the Property is annexed into and zoned by the City.  

 
(c) The Owner shall not construct, or allow to be constructed, any building or 

structure on the Property that requires a building permit until the Property is 
annexed into and zoned by the City.  Accessory structures authorized under the 
Single-Family Rural (District “SFR-1-B”) (including but not limited to barns, 
sheds, fences, and corrals) and buildings or structures that are related to and 
necessary for the use of the Property as authorized under Section 2(a) (excluding 
new single family residences) are exceptions to this Section 2(c), provided that 
the Owner obtains required building permits prior to construction.    

 
(d) While the Agreement remains in effect, the Property may be used for purposes of 

agriculture, wildlife management, and/or timber land use, as defined by Chapter 
23 of the Texas Tax Code and the uses authorized under the City’s Single-Family 
Rural (District “SFR-1-B”) zoning district.  If, during the term of the Agreement, 
the Property is utilized for uses other than agriculture, wildlife management, 
and/or timber land use, then the SFR-1-B regulations shall apply to such use of 
the Property.  Fences shall not be subject to setback requirements.  The City’s 
building codes and regulations shall apply to the Property except as provided 
otherwise in this Section 2.  Any buildings or structures constructed on the 
Property after the Effective Date shall be constructed in compliance with the 
regulations for the Single-Family Rural (District “SFR-1-B”) and applicable 
building codes and regulations, provided that building permits and related 
inspections shall only be required for the construction of a new single family 
residence and additions to an existing single family residence that are authorized 
to be located on the Property under this Agreement. 

 
Section  3. Development and Annexation of Property.   
 

(a) The following occurrences shall be deemed the Owner’s petition for voluntary 
annexation of the Property, and the Property may subsequently be annexed at the 
discretion of the City Council: 

  
(1) The filing of any application for plat approval (whether a preliminary plat or 

final plat), site plan approval, building permit or other development approval for 
the Property, or the commencement of development of the Property for a use or 



purpose other as specifically authorized herein.   
 

(2) The Owner’s failure to comply with Sections 2(a), 2(b), or 2(c) after receiving 
written notice from the City of such failure and failing to correct such failure to 
comply within thirty days from the date of the notice. 

 
(3) The Property is no longer appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as land for 

agricultural, wildlife management, or timber land under Chapter 23, Texas Tax 
Code, or successor statute, unless the Property is no longer appraised for such 
purposes because the Legislature has abolished agricultural, wildlife 
management, or timberland exemptions, provided that the Owner is in 
compliance with Section 2. 

 
(4) The filing for voluntary annexation of the Property into the City by the Owner. 

 
(5) The expiration of this Agreement. 

 
(b) The Owner agrees that annexation initiated due to an occurrence under Section 3(a) 

shall be voluntary and the Owner hereby consents to such annexation as though a 
petition for such annexation had been tendered by the Owner.   
 

(c) Upon annexation, municipal services shall be provided to the Property in accordance 
with the adopted municipal services plan meeting the requirements of Section 43.056 
(b)-(o) of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended.  Further and 
notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3(a) to the contrary, by entering this 
Agreement, Owner does not waive the requirements set forth in Sections 43.056 (b)-
(o), 43.141, or 43.148 of the Texas Local Government Code and the City agrees and 
acknowledges that it must comply with such provisions, to the extent applicable to the 
City in its annexation of the Property. 

 
(d) The Owner and the City agree and acknowledge that this Agreement does not establish 

the zoning of the Property upon annexation.  The parties further agree and 
acknowledge that the reference to SFR-1-B or other City zoning requirements or 
designations herein is solely for purposes of establishing requirements of Owner under 
this Agreement and does not represent an agreement of Owner that such zoning is 
appropriate for the future use or zoning of the Property.  Owner and the City intend to 
enter into a mutually agreeable development agreement pursuant to Chapter 212.172 
of the Texas Local Government Code (the “Chapter 172 Agreement”) that will address 
permitted uses of the Property before and after annexation and other matters related to 
the future development and use of the Property after it ceases to be used for 
agricultural purposes.  The City and Owner further acknowledge that the Owner 
intends to pursue the approval of Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning for the 
Property pursuant to Article III, Section 16 of the City of Leander Composite Zoning 
Ordinance concurrently with the annexation of the Property for a mixed use 
development of the Property.  Neither the City nor the Owner shall be bound to enter 
into the Chapter 172 Agreement unless the parties agree in writing on the form and 



content of the Chapter 172 Agreement and all procedures for adoption and approval of 
the Chapter 172 Agreement are duly satisfied.  Further, the City shall not be required 
to approve the PUD zoning for the Property and all procedures for adoption and 
approval of the PUD zoning of the Property must be duly satisfied in accordance with 
requirements of the City’s Code of Ordinances and state law. 
 

(e) The City and Owner agree that Owner shall be entitled to file an application for PUD 
zoning of the Property prior to annexation of the Property; provided that the 
application will not be finally acted upon by the City Council until the Property is 
located within the city limits.  Provided that Owner complies with all other terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and Owner continues to use the Property solely for 
agriculture, wildlife management, and/or timber land use while the PUD zoning 
application is pending, the filing and processing of the PUD zoning application shall 
not result in the annexation of the Property until the PUD zoning application is 
approved on Second Reading by the City Council.  Notwithstanding the forgoing, the 
Owner waives any and all vested rights and claims that the Owner may have under 
Section 43.002(a)(2) resulting from the filing of an application for the PUD zoning on 
the Property. 

 
Section  4.  Application of City Regulations.  Pursuant to Section 43.035(b)(1)(B), Texas Local 
Government Code, the Property is subject to all of the City’s regulations, as they are amended 
from time to time, and planning authority that do not materially interfere with the use of the 
Property for agriculture, wildlife management, or timber, in the same manner the regulations are 
enforced within the City’s boundaries and the Owner acknowledges and agrees that the City is 
hereby authorized to enforce said regulations and planning authority except as specifically 
provided otherwise herein.   
 
Section  5.  Term.  The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) is eight (8) years from the 
Effective Date.   
 
Section 6.  Vested Rights Claims.  This Agreement is not a permit for the purposes of Chapter 
245, Texas Local Government Code.  The Owner may not claim that Section 43.002(a)(2) or 
Chapter 245, Texas Local Government Code applies to uses or development of the Property that 
do not comply with Section 2 of this Agreement.  
 
Section 7.  Authorization.   
 

(a) All parties and officers signing this Agreement warrant to be duly authorized to execute 
this Agreement. 

 
(b) The Owner acknowledges that each and every owner of the Property must sign this 

Agreement in order for the Agreement to take full effect.  The failure of each and every 
owner of the Property to sign this Agreement at the time of approval and execution by 
the City shall result in the Agreement being void, and the City may, within its discretion, 
annex the Property in accordance with applicable law.  

 



Section  8.  Notice.  Any person who sells or conveys any portion of the Property shall, prior to 
such sale or conveyance, give written notice of this Agreement to the prospective purchaser or 
grantee, and shall give written notice of the sale or conveyance to the City.  Furthermore, the 
Owner and the Owner’s heirs, successor, and assigns shall give the City written notice within 14 
days of any change in the agricultural exemption status of the Property.  A copy of notices 
required by this this Agreement shall be sent by personal delivery or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the City at the following address:  
 
    City of Leander 
    Attn:  City Manager  
    200 W. Willis Street  
    Leander, Texas 78646 
  
Notices required to be sent to the Owner shall be sent by personal delivery or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to the Owner at the following address: 
 
Mr. and Mrs. John Gilpin 
P.O. Box 1204 
Salado, Texas 76571-1204 
 
With a copy to: 
 
William P. McLean 
McLean & Howard, L.L.P. 
901 S. Mopac Expwy. 
Building 2, Suite 225 
Austin, Tx.  78746 
 
Section  9.  Covenant Running with the Land.  This Agreement shall run with the Property, 
and a memorandum of this Agreement in a form substantially similar to that set forth in Exhibit 
“B” shall be recorded in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas.  The Owner 
and the City acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is binding upon the City and the Owner 
and their respective successors, executors, heirs, and assigns, as applicable, for the term of this 
Agreement.  Conveyance of the Property, or portions thereof, to subsequent owners does not 
trigger a request for voluntary annexation unless Section 2 is also violated. 

 
Section  10.  Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
and final jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, then the remainder of the 
Agreement shall be deemed to be valid and enforceable as if the invalid portion had not been 
included. 
 
Section 11.  Amendment and Modifications.  This Agreement may be amended or modified 
only in a written instrument that is executed by both the City and the Owner after it has been 
authorized by the City Council. 
 
Section 12.  Gender, Number and Headings.  Words of any gender used in this Agreement 



shall be held and construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall 
be held to include the plural, unless the context otherwise requires.  The headings and section 
numbers are for convenience only and shall not be considered in interpreting or construing this 
Agreement. 
 
Section 13.  Governmental Immunity; Defenses.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to waive, modify, or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to either the City or 
Owner, including governmental immunity, nor to create any legal rights or claims on behalf of 
any third party.  
 
Section 14.  Enforcement; Waiver.  This Agreement may be enforced by any Owner or the City 
by any proceeding at law or in equity.  Failure to do so shall not be deemed a waiver to enforce 
the provisions of this Agreement thereafter.    
 
Section 15.  Effect of Future Laws.  No subsequent change in the law regarding annexation 
shall affect the enforceability of this Agreement or the City’s ability to annex the properties 
covered herein pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.    
 
Section 16.  Venue and Applicable Law.  Venue for this Agreement shall be in Williamson 
County, Texas.  This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas. 
 
Section 17.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be separately executed in individual 
counterparts and, upon execution, shall constitute one and same instrument. 
 
Section 18.  Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of the date of 
approval of this Agreement by the City Council, from and after its execution by the Parties.   
 
Section  19.  Sections to Survive Termination.  This Agreement shall survive its termination to 
the extent necessary for the implementation of the provisions related to annexation of the 
Property into the City.  
  
Entered into this ____ day of _________________, 2014.  
  
 
Owner (s) 
  
  
__________________________________________  
Printed Name: ______________________________  
  
  
__________________________________________  
Printed Name: ______________________________  
  
 



 
City of Leander, Texas 
  
 
__________________________________________  
Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS       § 
COUNTY OF ______________ § 
 

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared 
______________, Owner of the Property, and acknowledged that s/he is fully authorized to 
execute the foregoing document and that s/he executed such document for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
          GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the ______ day of    
______________, 2014. 
                             

_______________________________ 
Notary Public  - State of Texas 

 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
 

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared 
______________, Owner of the Property, and acknowledged that s/he is fully authorized to 
execute the foregoing document and that s/he executed such document for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
          GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the ______ day of    
______________, 2014. 
                             

_______________________________ 
Notary Public  - State of Texas 

 



STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 

BEFORE ME the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared Christopher 
Fielder, Mayor, City of Leander, Texas and acknowledged that he is fully authorized to execute 
the foregoing document and that he executed such document for the purposes and consideration 
therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
          GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the ______ day of    
______________, 2014. 
                             

_______________________________ 
Notary Public  - State of Texas 



EXHIBIT “A” 
Description of the Property 

 
TRACT ONE: 
215.7811 acres; ABS 2101 FREEMAN T M R R CO ABS 2710 HORNSBY M S; Travis 
CAD Account No. 353973 
 
TRACT TWO: 
19.98 acres; ABS 2710 HORNSBY M S; Travis CAD Account No. 353974 
 
TRACT THREE: 
37.06 acres; ABS 2710 HORNSBY M S; Travis CAD Account No. 382596 
 
TRACT FOUR: 
13.021 acres; AW0292 - Hornsby, M. Sur.; Williamson CAD Account No. R514061 
 
TRACT FIVE: 
0.145 acres; Hornsby, M. Sur.; Williamson CAD Account No. R519115 
 
TRACT SIX: 
1.268 acres; Hornsby, M. Sur.; Williamson CAD Account No. R383674 
 
TRACT SEVEN: 
155.85 acres; Hornsby, M. Sur.; Williamson CAD Account No. R032162 
 
TRACT EIGHT: 
23.089 acres; Hornsby, M. Sur.; Williamson CAD Account No. R514060 
 
TRACT NINE: 
8.926 acres; Hornsby, M. Sur.; Williamson CAD Account No. R032165 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MEMORANDUM OF RECORD 
NOTICE OF DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 
 

STATE OF TEXAS    §   
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
Whereas, the undersigned (“Owner”) and the City of Leander (the “City”), entered into that certain 
Development Agreement under Section 43.035, Texas Local Government Code dated _______________, 
20_____, (the “Agreement”); 
 
Whereas, Owner and the City entered the Agreement pursuant to Local Government Code §43.035 which, 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, effectively guarantees the continuation of the 
extraterritorial status of Owner’s property that is currently appraised for ad valorem tax purposes as agricultural 
land under Subchapter C or D, Chapter 23 of the Tax Code until the Agreement expires or the property is 
developed for purposes other than agriculture; 
 
Whereas, Owner is the owner of record for the property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes (the “Property”); 
 
Whereas, recording the entire Agreement in the real property records of Williamson County is impractical and 
needlessly burdensome; and 
 
Whereas, the Owner and City agree to file this Memorandum of Record (“Memorandum”) to provide notice of 
the Agreement encumbering the Property; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned hereby executes this Memorandum and files the same of record in the 
Deed Records of Williamson County, Texas, for the purpose of giving notice to all persons that: 
 
(1)  The Agreement is on file with the City Secretary at the Leander City Hall, copies of which are available 
upon request.  
 
(2)  The Owner is required to perform as agreed and provided in the Agreement, as well as in accordance with 
all other applicable rules, regulations and codes of the City, except as provided otherwise in the Agreement. 
 
(3)  The Agreement provides that any person who sells or conveys any portion of the Property shall, prior to 
such sale or conveyance, give written notice of this Agreement to the prospective purchaser or grantee, and 
shall give written notice of the sale or conveyance to the City.  Furthermore, the Owner and the Owner’s heirs, 
successor, and assigns shall give the City written notice within 14 days of any change in the agricultural 
exemption status of the Property 

 
 
 



Executed and filed this the _____ day of ____________, 2014. 
        

   By:______________________ 
   Name: Kent Cagle  

Title:  City Manager          
             

       
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
  BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this day 
personally appeared Kent Cagle, City Manager of the City of Leander, known to me to be the person whose name 
is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
 GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the  ___                  day of                                  
2014. 
 
                
  (SEAL)   __________________________________________ 

                 Notary Public-State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
After Recording Return to: 
City of Leander 
Attn:  City Secretary 
P.O. Box 319 
Leander, Texas 78646-0319 



AGENDA ITEM # 23 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 1, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Consider acceptance of a Petition for the Creation of a Public Improvement 
District to Finance Improvements in the Oak Creek Subdivision and setting a public hearing on 
advisability of the proposed improvements. 
  
Background:  The City Council conducted a workshop on December 5, 2013 to discuss public 
improvement districts and the potential to create a PID for two specific projects.  One of those 
projects was the Oak Creek development near the intersection of 183 and San Gabriel Blvd.  
Since that meeting, the Oak Creek project has continued to progress with applications for zoning 
and preliminary plat.  The developers of Oak Creek have also met with staff to discuss their 
proposal to create a PID on the property and to enter an agreement for TIRZ reimbursements for 
certain infrastructure improvements associated with the project. 
 
At the April 17, 2014 meeting, Council directed staff to proceed with the steps necessary to 
accept the PID petition and schedule the public hearing for the creation of the PID.  This item 
achieves those two actions. 
 
If approved, the public hearing will be scheduled for June 5, 2014. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Sentinel/Cotter Leander, LLC 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends acceptance of the PID petition and setting the public 
hearing for June 5, 2014.   
 
Attachments:  

1. PID petition 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 4/23/14 











AGENDA ITEM # 24 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 1, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Discussion and possible action regarding the marketing and 

branding of the Transit Oriented Development District (TOD).  
 
Background: Council approved a contract with M. Arthur Gensler & Associates, 

Inc. (Gensler) on December 5, 2013 to develop a marketing and 
branding program for the TOD. 

  
 Gensler held a visioning session with Council and stakeholders on 

January 13, 2014.  On March 6, 2014 Gensler presented the brand 
platform and naming strategy to Council. 

 
 Based upon direction at the March 6, 2014 Council meeting, 

Gensler has prepared logo design concepts and a mock up of a 
marketing brochure and web site concept that will be presented by 
staff at this meeting. 

 
Origination: Staff 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None. 
 
Recommendation: This is an opportunity for Council to provide feedback and 

direction on the logo and brochure and web design. 
 
 
Attachments: 1 - Logo Options 
 2 - Mock up of sample brochure. 
   
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  04/23/14 
 



CONNECTION. CONVENIENCE. COMMUNITY.

CONNECTION. COMMUNITY.CONVENIENCE.

LOGO 1: GRAYSCALE

BROCHURE COVER

WEBSITE HOME PAGE

LOGO 1: COLOR 



CONNECTION. CONVENIENCE. COMMUNITY.

CONNECTION. COMMUNITY.CONVENIENCE.

LOGO 2: GRAYSCALE

BROCHURE COVER

WEBSITE HOME PAGE

LOGO 2: COLOR 



CONNECTION. COMMUNITY.CONVENIENCE.

LOGO 3: GRAYSCALE

BROCHURE COVER

WEBSITE HOME PAGE

LOGO 3: COLOR 



CONNECTION. CONVENIENCE. COMMUNITY.



In the heart of Central Texas, one of the fastest growing regions in the country, sits 2,300 acres of 

prime real estate surrounding Leander Station, the northern terminus of Austin’s MetroRail system.  

What awaits here is the rare opportunity to create not only a true Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) 

from the ground up, but to shape the identity of an entirely new place with an innovative vision. 

A Blank Canvas



The Context
A Rapidly Growing Population Base

About 150 people move to Central Texas 

each day.  Many of these new arrivals 

will take up residence in Leander, where 

more than 14,000 new homes are on 

the horizon.  Williamson County is the 

fastest growing county in the U.S.  Austin’s 

dynamic market growth of 36% and 47% 

over the last two decades is eclipsed 

by 79% and 64% growth in Williamson 

County during the same period.  Over the 

past 25 years Williamson County residents 

have enjoyed the fastest rate of income 

growth in Texas and the sixth-highest 

in the nation.  The county has increased 

employment by 73% since 2000, the third 

highest rate in the country. 

A Distinguished Education System 

The Leander Independent School District 

is consistently ranked one of the best 

districts in the state and is not surprisingly 

one of the fastest growing.  Leander ISD 

boasts some of the highest test scores, 

graduation rates and college enrollment 

and readiness statistics in Texas. 

After considering more than 24 properties 

in the area, the Austin Community College 

District purchased a 100-acre site less 

than ¼ mile from Leander Station in 2010 

with plans to open an ACC–Leander 

campus by 2017, citing current and future 

availability of transit as a key factor in 

selecting the location.

A Dynamic Transportation Network

Leander has never been more connected 

to Austin and to the surrounding 

communities of the Texas Hill Country.  

The area is served by exceptional transit 

service operated by Capital Metro, 

inluding MetroRail and Express Bus. 

Overall, MetroRail ridership has tripled 

since service began in 2010. 

To off er The completion of the 183A Toll 

Road in 2012 provides a bypass for U.S. 

Highway 183.  And, in 2013 construction 

began on an Express Lane in each 

direction on an 11-mile stretch of Texas 

State Highway Loop 1 (“Mopac”) between 

Leander and Austin.

Existing Neighborhoods

KEY

New Neighborhood Development

Existing K-12 Schools

TIRZ Boundary

MetroRail Red Line

Leander Station

Future Austin Community College–Leander Campus

TO AUSTIN

N



The Vision
In anticipation of inevitable future population growth, the 

City of Leander – in partnership with Capital Metro and a 

proactive group of major landowners – had the foresight 

to come together nearly a decade ago to ensure a shared 

vision for a new Transit-Oriented Development planned 

for the center of a 2,300-acre area around Leander Station.  

Based on the principles of New Urbanism, the goal was to 

lay the foundation for future development that would be 

characterized by compact, walkable neighborhoods, 

access to transit, open space, and a diverse mix of uses, 

instead of following the typical patterns of suburban sprawl 

found in many of today’s metropolitan areas.

In 2005, the City adopted a set of development regulations 

known as the SmartCode, a type of form-based code 

that includes standards for the variety of uses, types and 

orientation of buildings, design of streets, location of parks 

and open spaces and architectural standards for certain 

transect zones. The benefi t to property owners who develop 

using the SmartCode is that it provides fl exibility to adapt 

a particular building or site over time without having to go 

through the re-zoning process. In addition, it essentially 

protects developers from potentially less desirable adjacent 

developments that could devalue their investment.

Based on feedback from various stakeholders, the SmartCode 

is currently undergoing revisions that will refl ect best 

practices that have arisen since its original adoption to 

ensure that it continues to serve as a helpful tool for new 

development.

The SmartCode is what will ensure the TOD’s uniqueness as 

a destination – a place for people from all walks of life that is 

beautiful, fun, relaxing, inviting, memorable, authentic.

The Opportunity
The tremendous growth that Leander has experienced in 

recent years is unprecedented, and the future looks even 

brighter.  This opportunity, however, is about more than 

just meeting the increasing demand for new development.  

It’s about more than off ering a mix of uses to serve a 

burgeoning population.  This is an opportunity for forward-

thinking developers to create a one-of-a-kind destination, a 

new town center, a new urban core, where none currently 

exists.  

In the future, when people think of Leander, this will be 

the place that comes to mind.  Although there is presently 

no “Downtown Leander” in the typical vertical development 

sense, the TOD will become Leander’s new Downtown, 

representing the fi gurative and geographic heart of the 

community.  

As envisioned, the TOD represents one of the greatest 

opportunities in the history of Central Texas for developers 

to contribute something meaningful and lasting to the 

vibrant urban fabric of the region.  What’s more, a number 

of positive factors are coalescing to suggest one clear thing: 

the time to act is now!  

Favorable market conditions, high quality public 

transportation, a TIF/TIRZ already in place, an updated 

(more fl exible) form-based code, aspirational but realistic 

stakeholders and landowners who are enthusiastic 

participants in the process... the list goes on.  

This is an opportunity to avoid the mistakes made by typical 

suburban development, an opportunity to make history, an 

opportunity to begin a journey – Destination: Leander.   



CONNECTION. CONVENIENCE. COMMUNITY.

It’s about...



Connection

Served by both the MetroRail Red Line (which already enjoys substantial ridership) and a new highway 

(which was completed years ahead of schedule due to traffi  c demand), the TOD in Leander is the 

defi nitive opportunity to create a new city center on the basis of connections: people to people, people 

to places, and even connection to nature, as Leander is uniquely situated as a gateway to the beautiful 

Texas Hill Country.  These connections present a host of possibilities for new development.  Leander 

Station, one of only nine stations on the line and the only station outside of Austin, is also the fi rst stop 

(or last), distinctly making it an ideal place for one to begin (or end) an adventure... without getting 

in a car!  Unlike some stops on commuter rail lines – which are merely passed through on the way to 

somewhere else – the TOD developed at Leander Station will be not Just a stop, but a destination.



Connecting People and Places  

Connection to Nature



Convenience

Market support for new retail, restaurants, entertainment and other amenities is steadily growing 

in Leander, and as more people move in each day, the demand for convenience will become even 

greater.  And, as the identity of the Leander TOD takes hold – as a special destination all its own – 

the retail component will be further supported by not only local, everyday residents, but by regular 

visitors from Austin (just 25 miles south), Round Rock, and other surrounding communities as well.  

If new job opportunities are created within the TOD, convenience will also play a critical factor in 

establishing Leander as a highly viable option for the “reverse commute” from Austin, especially given 

the TOD’s multi-modal access.  Development infrastructure (or fi nancing mechanisms for the necessary 

infrastructure) are already in place, and the landowners and stakeholders are eager to work with the 

development community.  Add in a growing population base and a future college campus, and it is 

diffi  cult to deny the convenience of the opportunity and the potential for great returns.



The City… without the Congestion or the Cost. 

          Urban... yet Unpretentious  

                     Modern... yet Modest 

                 Innovative... yet Idyllic  

      Attractive... yet Aff ordable 



Community

Leander is known for its quality of life, excellent schools, and hometown pride.  It is peaceful and family 

friendly.  While it may not be known for round-the-clock activity today, it is not hard to imagine Leander 

as a vibrant, bustling center of activity in the very near future, making it vastly diff erent from most 

“commuter towns” in the U.S.  In particular, the Leander of tomorrow will feature a TOD that off ers the 

“best of both worlds” where one can enjoy the conveniences of the city as well as the comforts of the 

natural surroundings and community atmosphere.  At the same time, although there are no historical 

buildings to preserve as the TOD is developed, there are strong community values that are important 

to Leander’s citizens – values that make Leander a desirable place to live and to visit – which must 

be preserved as a new downtown emerges and Leander continues to grow.  As the city approaches a 

projected population of 200,000+ in the coming years, it is essential that the city’s most signifi cant new 

development maintains the friendly hometown feeling that defi nes Leander today.  



Beautiful 

 Peaceful

  Family Friendly

   Hometown



MARTI LEIGH LIMITED PART
70.37 Ac.
R031728

H E BUTT GROCERY CO
53.17 Ac.
R448044

MARTI LEIGH LIMITED PTNRS
40.69 Ac.
R321825

OSBAHR, GUNTER J
10 Ac.

R031722

OSBAHR M
10 

R

RM 2243

183A TO
LL R

D
 FR

 N
B

183A TO
LL R

D
 FR

 SB

183A TO
LL R

D
 SB

183A TO
LL R

D
 N

B

381 S
U S

W SOUTH ST

US
 1

83
 S

B

R
D TSE

W S

US
 1

83
 N

B

OLD 2243 WEST

D
R EV

O
R

G 
K

A
O

HA
LS

EY
 D

R

W SAN GABRI

LION DR

W BROADE ST

RIVA RIDGE DR

 B
LVD

HERITAGE GROVE RD

LEE DR

SONNY DR

MUNICIPAL DR

RANCHERO RD

EAGLES WAY

PVR
 949

S BAG
DAD RD

W
H

IT
LE

Y 
D

R

SIGNAL HILL DR

C
A

R
O

L 
AV

E

R
D ASE

M

R
EM

IN
G

TO
N

 D
R

OUTH GABRIEL DR

HORSESHOE DR

MASON ST

CHRISTOPHER LN

C
LA

YT
O

N
 D

R

B
U

R
G

ES
S 

D
R

BROADE W
AY

L
RT 

N
RE

HT
R

O
N

R
D 

RE
D

N
AEL

MICA LN

K
IN

G
 LN

NORTH CREEK BLVD

TOPAZ LN

MATHESON DR

HAZELWOOD ST

ET 
WEIVY

KS

K
ATH

ER
IN

E W
AY

DEXTER DR

EVA 
RE

N
N

A
B

R
D 

D
O

O
W T

NE
B

D
R YEL

D
O

O
W

TABERNASH DR

W METRO DR

SHERRY DR

OVERLOOK BND

PO
W

EL
L 

D
R

LEN BAR LN

R
A

N
C

H
O

 V
IE

JO
 L

N

TER
R

A
C

L
RT ES

O
R A

M
ME

GL
EN

 O
AK

 L
N

CINDY LN

E SONNY DR

JO
PP

A 
RD

HE
NS

LE
Y 

DR

LOS ROBLES RD

SCENIC PATH

CAMINO ALTO DR

PA
M

PA
S 

R
IC

A
S 

D
REN

C
A

N
TO

 D
R

SA
W

YE
R 

TR
L

JESS MAYNARD TRL

ES
TA

N
C

IA
 W

AY

SA
N

 V
IC

E
N

TE
 D

R

NORWOOD DR

C
O

YO
TE LN

ESC
O

N
D

ID
O

 D
R

R
D 

G
N

OS EV
O

D

LA
C

Y 
D

R

BA
R

NORTH
 H

IL
L C

RUBLES CT

L
RT LISS

OF

R
D L

AE
R 

O
NI

M
A

C

RI
C LLI

M
D

NI
W

M
O

O
N

 G
LO

W
 D

R

JOE BATES DR

B
LU

EB
O

N
N

ET TR
L

WASHBURN DR

R
D SS

AL
G

TEAL LN

GENTRY DR

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

YA
W EI Z

NE
K

C
A

M

PARKHURST DR

FLANAGAN DR

HIGH GABRIEL  EAST

CABALLERO RD

AIKEN DR

M
O

R
G

A
N

 D
R

FRIENDSHIP CV

LEN
 B

A
R

 C
T

B
AS

S 
TR

EA
SU

R
E 

O
A

K
S 

D
R

PECAN GROVE DR

C
A

SITA
S C

T

DEW DROP LN

RI
C 

K
C

O
REL

B
AT

O
A

K
LA

N
D

 C
V

MIDDLE BROOK DR

RED BUD CV

L
RT 

N
RE

HT
R

O
N

MIDDLE BROOK D S2

S3

S3

S2
S4

S1

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

CD

S1

CLDs and TNDs
based on ped sheds
may be developed

anywhere in S1

Sector Planning Boundary

Sectors
S1  Edge Sector
S2 General Sector
S3 Transit Sector
S4 Old Town Sector
CD Conventional Sector
OS Open Space

February 26, 2014

1/2 mile radius Pedestrian Shed
1/4 mile radius Pedestrian Shed

Community Units
 CLD TND - -
 - TND - -
 - - RCD - 
 - - - OTD
 - - - -
 - - - -

Sector Map
with Permitted Community Units

  CLD TND RCD OTD
 T1/T2 50% min.  no min. - -
 T3 10-30% 10-30% - -
 T4 20-40% 30-60% 10-30% mapped
 T5 - 10-30% 10-30% mapped
 T6 - - 40-80% -

Transect Zone Allocation

City of Leander, Texas
Leander Transect Planning Area

N
0

Fee

400

PICKLE
118.92 Ac.
R031235

WINTERS
91.63 Ac.
R032213

PICKLE
82.41 Ac.
R031236

WINTERS
79.339 Ac.
R032103

RB 270 PARTNERSHIP
175.4557 Ac.

R031604

WINTERS
79.48 Ac.
R032196

HIGGINBOTHAM
85.6972 Ac.

R449731

WINTERS
53.086 Ac.
R433110

WATERSTONE MICHELLE LP
144.92 Ac.
R031699

WYA VILLAGES OF MESSINA LTD
150.63 Ac.
R485834

HOUSE
39.2164 Ac.

R031325

WADE
30.72 Ac.
R051592

HEB GROCERY COMPANY L P
77.784 Ac.
R031635

WINTERS
23.4 Ac.
R458187

WUNSCH
22.252 Ac.
R032233

H E BUTT GROCERY CO
54.506 Ac.
R448044

WINTERS
21.82 Ac.
R481339

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE LP
61.476 Ac.
R031694

MARTI LEIGH LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
70.37 Ac.
R031728

RB 270 PARTNERSHIP
37.2725 Ac.

R461858

WYA VILLAGES OF MESSINA LTD
55.03 Ac.
R485832

TRANSIT VILLAGE INVESTMENTS LTD
61.05 Ac.
R457677

WYA VILLAGES OF MESSINA LTD
51.64 Ac.
R485833

LEANDER DEVELOPERS 4 LTD
46.514 Ac.
R403524

MARTI LEIGH LIMITED PTNRSH
40.692 Ac.
R321825

WYA VILLAGES OF MESSINA LTD
40.17 Ac.
R032104

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE LP
36.85 Ac.
R395875

OSBAHR
10 Ac.

R031722

TRANSIT VILLAGE INVESTMENTS LTD
42.887 Ac.
R031324

FABCON PRODUCTS
22.9269 Ac.

R031253

TRANSIT VILLAGE INVESTMENTS LTD
37.314 Ac.
R031600

WATERSTONE JEAN BAPTISTE LP
29.699 Ac.
R032239

LEANDER CITY OF
16.842 Ac.
R108637

MJAG PARTNERSHIP LTD
20.95 Ac.
R032221

LEANDER I S D TRUSTEE
13.635 Ac.
R489452

SAWTOOTH ENTERPRISES LTD
12.13 Ac.
R031323

OSBAHR MARCIA FAMILY TRST
10 Ac.

R031721

LEANDER I S D TRUSTEE
12.5 Ac.
R485950

WATERSTONE JEAN BAPTISTE LP
15.662 Ac.
R462742

WEST TEX TRADING RETIRE LTD
12.01 Ac.
R032234

CAPITAL METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
13.66 Ac.
R457676

C
R

 270

U
S 

18
3

183A TOLL RD

RR 2243

C
R

 273

S U
S 183

W SOUTH ST

C
R

 2
69

S 
W

ES
T 

D
R

OLD 2243 WEST

O
A

K
 G

R
O

VE
 R

D

C
R

 2
76

N
 U

S 
18

3

HALSEY DR

LION DR

RIVA RIDG
E DR

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

CR
 2

66

LEE DR

SONNY DR

PVR 918

MUNICIPAL DR

CR 267

PVR
 949

W
 BROADE ST

RANCHERO RD

EAGLES WAY

S BAG
DAD RD

TOPAZ LN

W
H

IT
LE

Y 
D

R

C
A

R
O

L 
AV

E

M
ES

A 
D

R

BAKER LN

SIGNAL HILL DR

R
EM

IN
G

TO
N

 D
R

SOUTH BROOK DR

MASON ST

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

HORSESHOE DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

S 
B

R
U

SH
Y 

ST

AMANDAS WAY

C
LA

YT
O

N
 D

R

ORCHARD DR

NORTH CREEK DR

B
U

R
G

ES
S 

D
R

SK
YV

IE
W

 T
ER

MICA LN

K
IN

G
 LN

LE
A

N
D

ER
 D

R

N
O

R
TH

ER
N

 T
R

L

DEXTER DR

HAZELWOOD ST

B
A

N
N

ER
 A

VE

K
AT

H
ER

IN
E 

W
AY

N
 B

R
U

SH
Y 

ST

NO
RT

H 
HI

LL
 C

IR

W WILLIS ST

B
EN

T 
W

O
O

D
 D

R

W
O

O
D

LE
Y 

R
D

N
 G

A
B

R
IE

L 
ST

SHERRY DR

PO
W

EL
L 

D
R

LEN BAR LN

O
VER

LO
O

K
 B

N
D

CINDY LN

R
A

N
C

H
O

 V
IE

JO
 L

N

TER
R

A
C

E D
R

G
LE

N 
O

AK
 L

N

EM
M

A 
R

O
SE

 T
R

L

HE
NS

LE
Y 

DR

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

LOS ROBLES RD

N
 W

ES
T 

D
R

SCENIC PATH

B
A

G
D

A
D

 ST E SOUTH ST

CAMINO ALTO DR

H
EN

D
ER

SO
N

 D
R

EN
C

A
N

TO
 D

R

PA
M

PA
S 

R
IC

A
S 

D
R

C
O

YO
TE LN

ATKIN ST

ES
TA

N
C

IA
 W

AY

LA
C

Y 
D

R

SA
N

 V
IC

EN
TE

 D
R

NORWOOD DR

C
O

U
LE

E 
D

R

ESC
O

N
D

ID
O

 D
R

E EVANS ST

DOVE SONG DR

JENNIFER LN

ORCHARD C
V

BA
R 

RY
DE

R 
TR

L

RUBLES CT

FO
SS

IL
 T

R
L

G
LA

SS
 D

R

M
O

O
N

 G
LO

W
 D

R

C
A

M
IN

O
 R

EA
L 

D
R

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

C
IR

WASHBURN DR

E BROADE ST

GENTRY DR

B
LU

EB
O

N
N

ET TR
L

TEAL LN

FLANAGAN DR

AIKEN DR

M
A

C
K

EN
ZI

E 
W

AY

N
 E

A
ST

 S
T

PARKHURST DR

CABALLERO RD

M
O

R
G

A
N

 D
R

H
IG

H
 G

A
B

R
IE

L 
D

R

HIGH GABRIEL  EAST

FRIENDSHIP CV

LEN BA
R

 C
T

E WILLIS ST

SA
B

IN
A

S 
D

R

C
A

SITA
S C

T

PECAN GROVE DR

S 
TR

EA
SU

R
E 

O
A

K
S 

D
R

DEW DROP LN

O
A

K
LA

N
D

 C
V

TA
B

LE
R

O
C

K
 C

IR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

RED BUD CV

WHITAKER DR

LOGUE CV

AQUA BELL CV

US
 1

83

ORCHARD DR

183A TO
LL R

D

RR 2243

MUNICIPAL DR

N
O

R
TH

ER
N

 T
R

L

OAK GROVE RD

MIDDLE BROOK DR

£
0 400 800

Feet

City of Leander, Texas
Leander TOD / TIRZ #1 and surrounding areas

TOD

Austin Community College

CR 273 ROW

Parcels

Maps

1 2 3

1.  Capital MetroRail Red Line Route

2.  TOD/TIRZ Ownership Map

3.  TOD/TIRZ SmartCode Sector Map



For more information contact:

Tom Yantis, AICP

Director of Development Services

City of Leander

tyantis@leandertx.gov

(512) 528-2732

Kent Cagle

City Manager

City of Leander

kcagle@leandertx.gov 

(512) 528-2702

CONNECTION. CONVENIENCE. COMMUNITY.

www.DestinationLeander.com


	Agenda
	Item # 4
	Item # 7
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 20
	Item # 21
	Item # 22
	Item # 23
	Item # 24



